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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”), the Group
was principally engaged in four businesses: (i) pharmaceutical products
business; (ii) finance leasing business; (i) other general trading business; and (iv)
genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services. The major businesses are
stated as below:

Pharmaceutical Products Business

Although the Company has disposed of the equity interest in Fuzhou
Pharmaceutical Company* (& Il % 2% & R X #)and Fujian Sanai
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (18 # = & %2 2 F R /2 7]) which were engaged in
pharmaceutical production, pharmaceutical products business is still one of the
core businesses of the Company. The Company continued to develop its
pharmaceutical products business through the acquisition of the 51% equity
interest in Fujian Yongchun Pharmaceutical Company Limited* (@32 7k & & &%
A R A 7)) (“Fujian Yongchun”) and the entire equity interest in Fujian Zhixin
Medicine Co., Limited* (18 &2 £ 15 % %% & [R 2 &) (“Fujian Zhixin”) in March
and April 2019 respectively.

Fujian Yongchun is located in Yongchun County, Quanzhou City, Fujian
Province. It occupies a site area of 32,330 square metres with a gross floor
area for the plants of approximately 8,311.58 square metres, in which the GMP
workshop has an area of 3,581 square metres. Fujian Yongchun owns 5 drug
registration series (% G #b & X 9%) in the PRC and produces 5 types of oral
medicine, including Yangpi San (£ £ 8), Sanqgi panax notoginseng capsules
(=4 B %) and phentolamine mesylate tablets (F #& B B ¥ 17 B3 ). It has
become the new base for pharmaceutical production of the Group.

The Group aims to increase its market share by promoting the core products
and other products of Fujian Yongchun. To achieve its goal, the Group plans to
redirect its current market position. In particular, the Group plans to enhance
its sales and promotional strategies in different channels so as to strengthen its
market penetration. The Group will also continue to expand its sales team to
explore the traditional medicine market through sales via drugstore chains. The
Group will also fully leverage its existing sales team to increase its sales through
distributors.

Fujian Zhixin possesses the Medical Operations Permit (Wholesale), Medical
Operation Quality Management System Certifications (GSP) and Food
Operations Permit. The Group acts as a sales agent nationwide for the herbal
medical materials, Chinese herbal medicine, Chinese patent medicine, chemical
drug preparations, antibiotic preparations, biochemical pharmaceuticals,
biological products, healthcare products and food products. The
pharmaceutical sales of the Group is expected to be boosted by the acquisition
of Fujian Zhixin. Not only the Group can sell its pharmaceuticals products
through the sales network of Fujian Zhixin, but can also act as a sales agent to
sell pharmaceuticals and healthcare products for other pharmaceutical
companies.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue derived from pharmaceutical
products business increased significantly by approximately 582.0% to
approximately RMB41.59 million (2018: approximately RMB6.10 million from
discontinued operation).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Leasing Business

Union Development Finance Lease (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (B4 25 & &l
EME (FYI) AR AR, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has been engaging in finance leasing business since 2017. The revenue
derived from finance leasing business for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB6.66 million (2018: RMB5.30 million).

Leveraging on the business platform, the Company will also develop leasing
services of medical devices and rehabilitation equipment which is
complimentary to the Group’s existing pharmaceutical products business.

Other General Trading Business

The Group operates other general trading business, which includes the trading
of health food products, fitness equipment and electric appliances. During the
Reporting Period, other general trading business recorded a revenue of
approximately RMB31.23 million (2018: approximately RMB52.73 million),
representing a drop of approximately 40.7%.

Genetic Testing and Molecular Diagnostic Services

The Group has acquired the equity interests in Zentrogene Bioscience
Laboratory Limited (“Zentrogene”) on 1 April 2019. Zentrogene primarily
engages in the provision of genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services.
Zentrogene operates a laboratory with the relevant license in Hong Kong,
providing services comprising non-invasive prenatal diagnosis (NIPD), tumor
genetic screening, DNA testing and paternity testing. Genetic testing is a
prerequisite for precision medicine. During the Reporting Period, the revenue
generated from genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services for the nine
months since the Group’s acquisition of Zentrogene till the end of the Reporting
Period amounted to approximately RMB2.40 million (2018: Nil).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has a total revenue of
approximately RMB81.85 million from its continuing operation, representing an
increase of approximately 41.1% as compared to approximately RMB58.02
million in 2018, and the gross profit margin from the continuing operation was
approximately 2.58% (2018: gross profit margin approximately 11.69%). The
Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB108.95 million (2018: loss of approximately RMB229.76
million). Profit for the year was mainly attributable to the one-off gain on
disposal of subsidiaries which amounted to approximately RMB112.15 million.
The basic and diluted earnings per share was approximately RMB3.5 cents
(2018: basic and diluted loss per share was approximately RMB7.7 cents).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB4.20 million (2018: approximately RMB17.75 million) and
most cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the Reporting
Period was mainly due to the normal operating loss incurred and the settlement
of the consideration for the acquisitions by the Group.

BEEN W R D

MEREEK
ARBIZEZEE2ENBRARBMAEREREMH
E(FRINERRR BT —tFR—ERK
EHEHEES - HEHAN REHEER
FEARENAARE6EET(ZE—N
F£: AR¥B5308&T) °

BBZEEFE  ARATHERBRRW
MEERBZEERY  AEEAEEZHR
BBREEMER -

Hih—RESEHK
AEERKEHM—RESHEL  RERER
mBEBEMEETREMES - REHA -
Hih—REFEBHBREHARES1.238
EL(ZE—N\F: HARBE273EE L)
TEE%)40.7% ©

ERWAR D FENDE RS

REBER =T — N0 A — B Y Zentrogene
Bioscience Laboratory Limited
([Zentrogene ) &) & # - Zentrogene & 2 7t
EFREBEEARAEY TEMZ B RS -
Zentrogene fE & BB & —RiF A AL L H
REEERET - IRILE KA S (NIPD) - EBER
B BEERARARETECSRE - &
HiRB 2 BEBRNVERIE - REHHA -
ERBAES FEMZEHREMFREB AR
& B U B Zentrogene 1B B £ # & B K 1E LA
RHIBARMEA0EBET(ZZ—N\F - &) -

Bt % B 8

HE-T-AF+_A=+-RHBILEE &
EEBECEEB 2 RREHABARES1.85
BEL BT \GEHARMES802HET
MK A%  FEKCEEBZ2ENEN R
258% (ZZF—N\F : EFEL11.69%) ° 7N
EEBEEBALBHBABEZNOARE
108.58 &8 TL(—ZE— \F: BEOARE
229.76 BB L) - FAHEM I EEZHNEEN
BRElz —RMEREHOAREI1121568ETT °
BREAREBEZAEFNNABAREISS (ZF
—N\F: FREARBEBENAARETY

D)

REBES WRERRERE

RZE—NF+-_A=+—H8 x%KEEBEZR
S NASEEVMHABARE4208EL(ZF
—N\EHARBA7T7T58ET)  MAZHD
ReRRSEBYMWUAARBRBLE - R
TRESCEBYRREP THRNETERAR
REBEL —MREEBEBREM ZKER

R

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR

7



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR D

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no secured bank loan which was
secured by the land use rights and property, plant and equipment of the Group
(2018: RMB233.79 million). During the Reporting Period, the Group did not use
any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 8 January 2019 and 22
March 2019, certain pledged properties have been sold at the total price of
RMB78 million during an auction conducted by the People’s Court of Jianyang
District, Nanping City (F ¥ M # [% [& A R J% Ft) on 15 March 2019, the
proceeds of which, net of reasonable auction expenses to be charged by the
People’s Court of Jianyang District Nanping City, have been wholly used to
settle part of the outstanding amount under the then secured bank loans of
RMB233.79 million.

The Group had reviewed its capital structure by using gearing ratio. The
gearing ratio represents the total debt, which includes trade and other payables
and secured bank loans of the Group, divided by total equity of the Group. The
gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 33.19% as at 31 December 2019
(2018: approximately 394.58%).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group conducted most of its
business transactions in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any
material difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
did not have any foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps or
other financial derivatives for hedging purpose. Therefore, the Group was not
exposed to any material interest and exchange risks during the Reporting
Period. The management, however, will monitor and consider hedging foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S NOTICE TO SUSPEND TRADING IN
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company received a letter dated 24 May 2019 from The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), which served a notice that the
Stock Exchange considered that the Company has failed to maintain a
sufficient level of operations or have tangible assets of sufficient value and/or
intangible assets for which a sufficient potential value could be demonstrated
under Rule 13.24 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) to warrant the continued listing of the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”). The Stock Exchange has therefore decided to
suspend trading in the Shares under Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules and
proceed with cancellation of the Company’s listing under 6.01A(1) of the Listing
Rules (the “Decision”).

The Company was required to re-comply with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules
and would have a remedial period of 18 months to re-comply with the Listing
Rules. If the Company failed to do so by the expiry of the 18-month period (i.e.
on or before 23 November 2020), the Stock Exchange would proceed with
cancellation of the Company’s listing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

After seeking professional advice, on 4 June 2019, the Company had
submitted a written request to the listing committee (the “Listing Committee”)
of the Stock Exchange for the Decision to be referred to the Listing Committee
for review pursuant to Rule 2B.06(1) of the Listing Rules.

The Board emphasized that the Group was undergoing a period of
transformation. The Group has terminated its business with continued losses
and disposed of its assets with substantial net liabilities for the interests of the
Company and shareholders as a whole. The Board will use its best efforts to
improve the Group’s overall performance in the future.

On 6 September 2019, the Company received a letter from the Listing
Committee setting out its decision on the review application (the “Decision
Letter”). According to the Decision Letter, the Listing Committee decided to
uphold the Decision to suspend trading in the Shares. The trading in the shares
were suspended and the Company would be required to resume trading within
a period of 18 months from the date of the suspension. If the Company failed
to do so, the Stock Exchange would proceed with cancellation of the listing of
the Company.

After seeking professional advice, the Company submitted a written request to
the Listing (Review) Committee (“Listing (Review) Committee”) of the Stock
Exchange for the Decision to be referred to the Listing (Review) Committee for
review (the “2nd Review Request”) pursuant to Rule 2B.06(2) of the Listing
Rules.

On 23 January 2020, the Company received a reply from the Listing (Review)
Committee that they had decided to uphold the decision of the Listing
Committee. The Company was required to re-comply with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules and resume trading within a period of 18-month period. If the
Company failed to do so by the expiry of the 18-month period, the Stock
Exchange would proceed with cancellation of the listing of the Company.

By way of letters to the Company dated 12 February 2020, 7 April 2020 and
18 January 2021, the Stock Exchange imposed the following resumption
guidance for the Company:

(i) Demonstrate its compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules;

(ii) Publish all outstanding financial results and address any audit
modifications; and

(i)  Re-comply with Rules 3.10, 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
26 May 2019, 28 May 2019, 4 June 2019, 9 September 2019, 16 September
2019, 24 January 2020, 12 February 2020, 7 April 2020, 23 April 2020, 24 July
2020, 23 October 2020, 18 January 2021, 22 April 2021 and 12 July 2021
respectively.

BEEN W R D

SREEERE  ARAR_ZT-NEFERA
PO A AR 4% - T AR RIS 2B.06(1) &M B A FT_E
ZEg(LtTWEEG)REEERF  BX
BORERT LR EGEZ

EXeRAAEEERNEIE - REER
AARBRROBRNE  AEERRLEE
FEBBENEXL YCOHEERSEXRAE
FENBEE -BEFGHERKBOINEARAEE
HEBBRIR -

RZE-NFAARE ARREELTE
SEntt - ghEsAEERRBZRE(R
ERAF]) - RIBRERMN - EWEEGRE
ERLEROIZGHRE -BOHEEXZA
ApmZANE R AR 1818 A BEARE
RZ5 e MARRRREMAULITE - BRI
RRBEITERE -

ESREXBRR  ARFERELHHRL
£ 2B.06Q) AR Em(BRZEE ([ L
T(ER ZEEEDEXFEBZRTER
m(ER) ZReERNEMEZR((B-RE
BER]) -

RZZT-_ZTF—A=-+=H ARaEEEL
TM(BR)ZESNEE  RRESREHR
ETHZEERRTE - AQARBEHET LN
MANE13.241%  WR 18 AHBEARKEE
E o AR FIREERN 181E B HAR fE % AT 2
TR B AT E A R BIETTRR S o

BBAMAE-_T-_TF_A+=-H =T
EZENMA+AR-_E-_—F— A+ \BHH
NAB K BRFTE AR R BB NERE
&5 -

(i) RERRHE ST TR AISE 13.24 15 ¢

(i)  BEMAAERFTIENMEEE  WREME
IFEHERT + &

iy EHESF LW AIE3.10 3.10A
3.21 % 3.25f%k ©

EZHBEELEARATRHELRAE TR
FRHAZ+AA - ZE-AFRAZ=F+NA
—E-HEXANB  —EB-AFAAAB -
—E-NFhLAT+AH  ZE=-FF—A
—+mMBE - —E-FTFE-_A+=-H - —ZE=
TENMA+LRHE —E-_ZTFEFMWA=-_+=8 "
—E-ZTFLA-—+WA - T2 -FTF+A
—+t=-=Z=2=—%—A+N\B =%
T FMNAZF+ZARZZE=—FtA+=

BHAE -

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR D

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitment (2018: approximately RMB37.95 million).

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any other significant
contingent liabilities as at the date of this report.

As at 31 December 2019, there was no land use right and property, plant and
equipment (2018: approximately RMB233.79 million) which had been pledged
as security for the borrowings of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions disclosed below, there were no significant
investments held, material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the Reporting Period.

Disposal of Wuyi International Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Wuyi HK”) and Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Fujian Sanai”)

On 30 April 2019, the Group disposed of the entire equity interest of Wuyi HK
and Fujian Sanai (the “Disposal”) at consideration of approximately RMB9,000.
Wuyi HK was engaged in investment holding and Fujian Sanai was engaged in
investment holding, development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of
pharmaceutical products. Wuyi HK did not carry out any business during the
period. The Disposal was completed on 30 April 2019 and since then, the
Group discontinued its development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of
pharmaceutical products business under Fujian Sanai. The net proceeds from
the Disposal have been used for general working capital of the Group.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30
April 2019.

Acquisition of Zentrogene Bioscience Laboratory Limited
(“Zentrogene”)

On 29 March 2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to acquire the entire equity interest in
Zentrogene at a consideration of HK$19,500,000 (approximately
RMB16,673,000) which shall be settled by cash. The principal activities of
Zentrogene are provision of genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services
in Hong Kong. The management considers that such acquisition will enable the
Group to develop its precision medicine. The acquisition was completed on 1
April 2019.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28
March 2019.

Acquisition of Fujian Zhixin Medicine Co., Limited (“Fujian Zhixin”)*

On 28 March 2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to acquire the entire equity interest in Fujian
Zhixin at a consideration of RMB2,000,000 which shall be settled by cash. The
principal activities of Fujian Zhixin are sales of pharmaceutical products in the
PRC. The management considered that such acquisition would enable the
Group to enrich its product categories as well as expand its sales network. The
acquisition was completed on 1 April 2019. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Acquisition of Fujian Yongchun Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Fujian Yongchun”)*

On 25 October 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to acquire 51% equity interest in Fujian
Yongchun at a consideration of RMB7,650,000 which shall be settled by cash.
The principal activities of Fujian Yongchun are production, development and
sales of pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The management considered
that such acquisition would enable the Group to increase new manufacturing
bases of pharmaceutical products and enrich product categories as well as
expand sales network. The acquisition was completed on 28 March 2019.

The consideration amounted to RMB7,650,000 has not been settled in full as
at the date of this report.

The Group has liaised and explained to the vendor of Fujian Yongchun for the
prolonged delay in settlement. The vendor of Fujian Yongchun has accepted
the Company’s request for the prolonged delay in settlement and entered into
an agreement with the Company regarding the Company’s timetable to settle
the acquisition balance. The Company will continue to liaise with the vendor of
Fujian Yongchun on the payment terms of the balance of Fujian Yongchun
acquisition consideration so as to minimize the possibility of the legal action to
be taken by the vendor of Fujian Yongchun against the Company.

Intended acquisition of Shenzhen Century Rongtai Guarantee Co. Ltd
(“Shenzhen Rongtai”)*

On 17 April 2019, Union Development Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with Shenzhen Keming Enterprises Co., Ltd.* (%
Yl FL$8E % B R 2 7)) and an individual in respect of the proposed
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Rongtai* (JF 3117t 42 B8 2=
BB HEIR AR A F]) at a total consideration of RMB3.3 million. This intended
acquisition has subsequently been terminated as certain major conditions
precedent have not been satisfied.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17
April 2019.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Lapse of Placing of Shares

On 15 April 2019, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent to issue the placing shares to not less than six placees. The
placing agreement has not been proceeded as the conditions precedent for
obtaining the listing approval from the Stock Exchange is not fulfilled on or
before 30 June 2019.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
15 April 2019 and 28 May 2019.
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BEENWE DN

EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group employed 69 employees
(2018: 230 employees) with total staff cost of approximately RMB7.40 million
(2018: approximately RMB16.95 million) from continuing operations. The Group
determined staff remuneration with reference to prevailing market salary scales,
individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages including
performance bonuses and entitlements to share options are reviewed on a
regular basis.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there was no
significant capital expenditure incurred by the Group for property, plant and
equipment.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance practice, such that the interests of our shareholders, customers,
employees as well as the long term development of the Company can be
safeguarded.

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the Board and three
board committees under the Board, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board
stipulates the terms of reference of all board committees and specifies therein
clearly the powers and responsibilities of the board committees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December 2019,
except for deviation from code provision A.2.1, A.2.7 and A.6.7 of the CG
Code as further elaborated below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the Company’s own code for securities transactions by its
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that during the year ended 31 December 2019, they fully
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2019, the Board consisted of eight members, with five
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chen Chenggqing, Mr. Gao Borui, Mr. Yuan
Chaoyang and Professor Zhang Rongging and Mr. She Hao, one non-
executive director, namely Mr. Xiu Yuan and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tu Fangkui, Mr. Wang Zihao and Mr. Long Jun. All
Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise, and have
exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics and integrity. The
biographical details of each Director are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report. There is no relationship among
the Directors.

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall development
and management of the Group with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the overall strategies and policies of the Group, approval of
annual budgets and business plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance
and oversight of the works of management.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and report to them at general
meetings. The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall strategy
and to monitor the operation as well as the financial performance of the
Company. The Chairman focuses on the Company’s strategy and is
responsible for chairing and managing the efficient operation of the Board and
ensuring that all key issues are considered by the Board in a timely manner.
Notice of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda
whenever they consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda and
accompanying Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are
dispatched in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the meeting.
Directors have to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered at Board meetings and abstain
from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of all Board meetings are circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to confirmation. The
Board meets at least 4 times a year, at approximately quarterly intervals, to
review the financial performance and results of each period, material
investments and other matters of the Company that require the resolution of
the Board. Simultaneous conference call may be used to improve attendance
when individual Director cannot attend the meeting in person. Opinions of the
independent non-executive Directors are actively sought by the Company if
they are unable to attend the meeting in person.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”); all Directors have access to Board papers and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information in a timely manner; this
enables the Board to make informed decision on matters placed before it.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during the year under review,
the Board formulated the terms of reference on the corporate governance
duties and performed corporate governance duties in accordance with the
terms of reference. To be specific, the Board mainly performed the following
corporate governance duties during the year under review:

o reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made recommendations;

o reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices to ensure
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

o developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct applicable to
directors and employees; and

o reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

EFenEEFETHRE MR AR
BEBRMEREEURPMBRE - Efv/
RABRBALIAEEEREEEETEZAN
BE YHERMAEEARNEBECEESZQER
ER-MATHEFS IR AGSRIES
BATARANBGEMBES ﬁé%T%EE
REERFENEMEAFAZRE - EHE
BRR AR RIEN é?%i)l##ﬂ# S
IR 2 A EREANEBIRE THAEES
EEVABRRARSENESTERHR LETEZ
Eﬂ%%&X%ZE&?ﬁ&%\@Mﬁ
TREECEATHRERR -MEEEGSH
B E RS TR N R AT S IR AR X
TEEUHRSERHEER -EE98FED
RBOTMOREH HEF R NS ARQF
BHEERRLEEMRZES  EAREUR
TEEFGRFRCHEMERT - BERES
AeeRmEHmEeR MU ReFBRSER
BE O UARREEZHFEE - WBLIEMTT
BExRRRIHESE  ARFANEEES
KEZER -

ARBARRAME((RAAWENRFEFSS
L MEEROAREHEREXMHR
RN E . TERRERETDER R
E=gAREZFRERABRE

RERBRETE  EFEXEEFEARL
EEERBREGIR T RESE  WiIZRBE
HERTTLEXELARAE - ABNE  EF
SROBEFEANTZRITT THLEERR
. RN
HER

CEREABRREESR AR

. B REREERD
FEEEER:

EIEE IR R
. A MERARAOBERNER - AR
RETHEMERIEERE

. HIE - e RERERENERERNE
SR R

. W AR BETREERTRINER &
EEEERMENMNREEEE -



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD ATTENDANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had convened 27 Board
meetings and 1 general meeting.

Attendance records of the Directors are as follows:

EEEHESR
REBEE-T-—NFT+-A=+—HILFE"
ERECRTTRESFEERRIRNKREARE -
BEREZHFERSNAT

Number of Number of

ERERME

attendance of
Board meetings

attendance of
general meetings

Directors EEeg BRAE
= HERE HERE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Chengqing (Chairman) PR S (F)E) 27/27 11
Professor Zhang Rongaing REFEHIK 27/27 1/1
Mr. Gao Borui (appointed with effect SEEEE(BEZE—NEF 8/8 0/0

from 26 July 2019)

Mr. Yuan Chaoyang (appointed with effect

from 26 July 2019)

Mr. She Hao (appointed with effect
from 11 November 2019)

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan (resigned with effect
from 26 July 2019)
Mr. Cheng Hoi Kai, Frederick

Tt A=+ REREZRE)

RAGEE(AZZE—NF
tAZTRBEREZRE)

REXE(B=T-NF
t—A+— Ei%?&)

HERZE (A= —NF
tAZTRBEE)
BEREE (BT —NF

(appointed with effect from 9 May 2019 and  F AL BB EE X

resigned with effect from 1 November 2019)

RZZE-NF+—A—BEE)

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Xiu Yuan BER%E

Independent non-executive Directors BIAFHTES

Mr. Tu Fangkui BrA#EE

Mr. Wang Zihao FFREE

Mr. Long Jun BEELEE

Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor (resigned with RFAREE(BZE—NF
effect from 4 April 2019) 9 A B EHT)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Gao Borui was appointed with effect from 26 July 2019. Only 8 Board meetings were

held and no general meeting was held during his appointment period.

) Mr. Yuan Chaoyang was appointed with effect from 26 July 2019. Only 8 Board meetings
were held and no general meeting was held during his appointment period.

) Mr. She Hao was appointed with effect from 11 November 2019. Only 1 Board meeting
was held and no general meeting was held during his appointment period.

(4) Ms. Hung Hoi Lan resigned with effect from 26 July 2019. Only 20 Board meetings were
held during her appointment period.

(5) Mr. Cheng Hoi Kai, Frederick was appointed with effect from 9 May 2019 and resigned
with effect from 1 November 2019. Only 10 Board meetings were held during his
appointment period.

(6) Mr. Chan Chun Yin, Victor resigned with effect from 4 April 2019. Only 4 Board meetings
were held and no general meeting was held during his appointment period.

(7) Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, non-executive Directors and

independent non-executive Directors should also attend general meeting. Mr. She Hao, Mr.
Gao Borui, Mr. Yuan Chaoyang, the executive Directors did not attend the general meeting
because their appointments were effective after the general meetings. For Mr. Chan Chung
Yin, Victor, the independent non-executive Director, did not attend the general meeting of
the Company because his resignation was effective before the general meeting.

—EREEXEEARAT  —F—

(Note 1) (FifzE1)
(Note 7) (Ff3£7)

(Note 1) (FizE1)
(Note 7) (FH5E7)

8/8 0/0
(Note 2) (FI5E2) (Note 2) (Fif5E2)
(Note 7) (F45E£7) (Note 7) (47£7)
1/1 0/0
(Note 3) (Fif5£3) (Note 3) (M5£3)
(Note 7) (FH5E7) (Note 7) (FH7E£7)
20/20 1/1

(Note 4) (FiF7E4)
10/10 1/1

(Note 5) (F45E5)
27/27 1/1
27/27 1/1
27/27 1/1
27/27 1/1
4/4 0/0
(Note 6) (Hf5£6) (Note 6) (Hf5£6)

(Note 7) (Ff7£7)

(Note 7) (Fi&E7)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of an issuer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. The Company does not have the role of Chief Executive
Officer at present. Mr. Chen Chengqging is the Chairman responsible for
overseeing the operations of the Group. The Board considers that vesting the
roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person facilitates
the implementation of the Company’s business strategies and maximizes the
efficiency of its operations. On the other hand, there are three independent
non-executive Directors on the Board, all of them possess adequate
independence and therefore the Board considers the Company has provided
sufficient protection to the balance between its interests and the interests of its
shareholders. The Board shall review the structure from time to time and shall
consider the appropriate adjustment should suitable circumstance arise.

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman should at
least annually hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence of the executive
directors. During the Reporting Period, Mr. Chen Chengqging (“Mr. Chen”), the
chairman of the Company did not hold any meeting with the non-executive
Directors of the Company without presence of the executive Directors.
However, Mr. Chen has effective communication with the non-executive
Directors from time to time.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
All independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director did not
attend any general mestings since the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 17 June 2019 as the Company had not convened any annual general
meeting since 17 June 2019.

In full compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
during the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term between one and two years. The appointment contracts
will be renewed every year and they are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election by shareholders in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. The responsibilities of the non-executive Directors include, without
limitation: regular attendance at meetings of the Board and of board
committees of which they are members; provision of independent opinions at
meetings of the Board and other board committees; resolution of or taking the
lead where there is potential conflict of interests; service on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company; and scrutinizing and monitoring the performance of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in August 2013 and such
Board Diversity Policy states the method by which the board diversity can be
reached.

To the knowledge of the Company, the fact that the Board has become
gradually more and more diversified has helped the Company achieved its
strategic objective and has provided support for the Company’s sustainable
development.

The Company aims at achieving board diversity by taking into consideration of
various factors including the age, culture and educational background, race,
professional experience, knowledge and other qualifications of the members of
the Board. When the Company determines the best combination for the
members of the Board, it will, from time to time, take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs.

The Nomination Committee has designed measurable goals according to four
major aspects (namely, age, professional qualification, term of service and
independence) for the purposes of implementing the Board Diversity Policy and
considered that it has tried its best endeavour to achieve such goals during the
year under review. The relevant goals will be reviewed from time to time so as
to ensure its appropriateness and its progress for achieving such goals. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time
(if appropriate) to ensure that such policy continues to be effective.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code provides that Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remain informed
and relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional

EEEI
PEERTRITFANEXEALSIKRE  EE
ELEBERERRE  HEVEBHENMEN
et URREEZETAGEZEENLIE
FIErER T HEESELER -

%E;%%% SEE BRI R, B R

development activities by way of attending training and/or reading materials

AREGAESBRH LB BBANER

relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and ’}Eﬁi SEHEER - REBEEFMIEMCH

responsibilities. A summary of professional trainings received by the Directors

for the Reporting Period according to the records provided by the Directors is

EENMERRIEERIOBENT

as follows:
Attending semina(s)
programme(s)/
conference(s)
and/or reading
material relevant
to the business
Directors or directors’ duties
HEMHERER
BEK SEEH
EBERNEZHIE
= BRAMNER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chen Chengajing (Chairman) BRAKE ST (%) v
Ms. Hung Hoi Lan (resigned with effect from WERZLt(A-ZT—h&EtA-+/,<H
26 July 2019) BF1E) v
Professor Zhang Rongging REEEHIF 4
Mr. She Hao (appointed with effect from REXE(BZZ—NF+—A+—Hi
11 November 2019) EERE) v
Mr. Gao Borui (appointed with effect from SREEE(BZE-NFLAZ+ AR
26 July 2019) ERE) v
Mr. Yuan Chaoyang (appointed with effect from RPEGEE(BZE-AFEAZ+ B
26 July 2019) EEE) v
Mr. Cheng Hoi Kai, Frederick (appointed with effect BEMEE(BZT-AFRANBRE
from 9 May 2019 and resigned with effect from BZEER—Z—NF+—A—HBEE)
1 November 2019) v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Xiu Yuan BREE
Independent non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. Tu Fangkui BAEEE v
Mr. Wang Zihao FFREE v
Mr. Long Jun fEE Rt 4
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor (resigned with effect from — FRIFSRSEAE (B —Z— A EMN AN B EHT)
4 April 2019) v
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance for all
the Directors and the senior management of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate activities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are allocated to
the three Board committees, each of which operates under its defined terms of
reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the Audit
Committee and their attendance records for the year ended 31 December
2019 were as follows:

ERERME

E=ZRERBERRE
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ERREBEEERR - FRARRRBKREK
REEZHMEENKA BR  AXEE
ffeo
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AREEE -

EREES
ARBCRELTRAUKNIEZZEGLE
EREEEBESE  RBEE—F
A=+—RLFE EXZEezHA
SEHFECENT

(s

Directors Number of attendance of
Bx HE R
Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHTES

Mr. Wang Zihao (Chairman) TFREE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Tu Fangkui BAMEE 2/2
Mr. Long Jun PEE A& 2/2
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BRITAASEHE 0/1

(resigned with effect from 4 April 2019)

Note: Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor resigned with effect from 4 April 2019 and one Audit
Committee meeting was held during his appointment record.

Each member can bring to the committee his valuable experience in reviewing
financial statements and evaluating significant control and financial issues of
the Company as each of them possesses management experience in the
accounting profession or commercial sectors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Company’s financial reporting system, financial statements and internal
control procedures. The Audit Committee also monitors the appointment of the
Company’s external independent auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection on the Company’s website at
www.1889hk.com and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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(Note) (Ffi7)
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year under
review, two meetings were held. The Audit Committee discussed and reviewed
the annual results announcement and the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the Company’s
internal control system reports, and recommended to be submitted to the
Board for further approval. Also, the Audit Committee reviewed the
consolidated financial statement of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2019 and recommended the same to be submitted to the Board for
further approval. The annual results announcement and annual report of the
Group and the reports on the Company’s internal control and risk management
systems for the year ended 31 December 2018 had also been reviewed by the
Audit Committee with no disagreement among all Audit Committee members,
and with recommendation to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee and their attendance records for the year ended 31
December 2019 were as follows:

ERZEEREBEFELETMAEE - KNE
BFEA ARAIBRITTMAGH BREE
BHURREZARRBEZE_T—N\F+=A
T —HIEFEZFEEERNMRESVE
WMERARAZAPELZRFRE - WEH
REEFGUFHE—DPIE - BREET
NEBAQRRHZ-_ZE—NFA=THL
NERZEGEEMBHREK  LMESTEZR
ELMNFHE- SR E BE-_T—\F
TZA=T—HUEFEZAEBRFEEER
- FERERARAZANBEZERRRBE
BESHENCHEZZESEN  BEX

ZEGMEREZHITERS ITRESS
HEE - DARRHLAE -

FMESS
ARBERELTRAUKIFHEESLE

EREEEBESE BE-_T-NAF+ A
=t+—BLEFE FHMEESeZEREES
B R T

Number of
Directors attendance of
g% HERE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chen Chengaing BRAK BE S 4 4/4
Professor Zhang Rongging REEHR 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Wang Zihao (Chairman) FFEREE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Tu Fangkui BH#EE 4/4
Mr. Long Jun BEExEA 4/4

The Board has delegated the authority to the Remuneration Committee to
review and recommend to the Board the compensation scheme of the
Directors as well as that of the senior management staff.

The main function of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board to
oversee the Company’s remuneration packages, bonus and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management and establish a
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. The Board
shall provide sufficient resources to the Remuneration Committee to enable it
to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has conducted
four meetings. The Remuneration Committee assisted the Board in reviewing
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of newly
appointed executive Directors. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available for inspection on the Company’s website at
www.1889hk.com and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

EXeRRTNZEendEERRRER
BTrmMts kit mESESRMER

FHEE eI ERERBHEEIERALR
AXNEERSREREZ#FMES B2
LEMBEARGTI - ERBRENEF
NHERFBZEME <BK - EFEARH
HEEgRUARER  USHERHBITH
BE -

REEFE FINZESEHMASE - 5
MEESHMBETERTZTRNTESZH
BfEHE R M EE SR HEZ - Fl
ZEe vHESREYT R AR M
www.1889hk.com f B 22 Fr 48 ufi & B o



Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee with written terms of
reference. The composition of the Nomination Committee and their attendance
records for the year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

ERERME
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Number of
Directors attendance of
BE HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Chengging (Chairman) BRAKEE S (E/E) 4/4
Professor Zhang Rongaing REEEHIK 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Wang Zihao FFEEE 4/4
Mr. Tu Fangkui EBrEEE 4/4
Mr. Long Jun BELA 4/4

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals who are suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, and to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. Having regard to the
independence and quality of nominees, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and
transparent. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company, and reviewing the objectives set for
implementing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as well as the
composition and diversity of the Board. The Board shall provide sufficient
resources to the Nomination Committee to enable it to discharge its duties.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years. The retiring Directors are
eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has conducted four
meetings in which the members of Nomination Committee performed appraisal
of newly appointed executive Directors, recommended the Board to appoint
them as Directors and as members of Board committees and reviewed the
independence of all of the independent non-executive Directors. During the
year under review, the Nomination Committee also monitored the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available for inspection on the Company’s website
at www.1889hk.com and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from Board
members for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members. The factors which would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate of director
include, inter alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
Board member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate
to the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance matters of the
Company. The Board has established its terms of reference, pursuant to which
the duties of the Board include, inter alia, (i) to develop, review and implement
the policies and practices of corporate governance matters of the Company; (ii)
to review, monitor and implement the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (i) to review, monitor
and implement the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (iv) to develop, review, monitor
and implement the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to Directors and employees; and (v) to review and ensure compliance with the
CG Code by the Company and proper and accurate disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the senior management
of the Company (including executive Directors), whose biographies are set out
on pages 26 to 29 of this annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out below:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 1,000,000 7T
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor,
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, for their works
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 was as follows:

Audit services FEIZR
Non-audit services IEFZ RIS
Total et

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges their responsibility for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The Board acknowledges their
responsibilities for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows for
that period. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Board
has adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable; and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which set out
the financial position of the Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, has set out their
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out on pages 46 to
48 of this annual report.
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for the year ended
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BT

4,116,000

4,116,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board places great importance on risk management and internal control
and has ultimate responsibilities for overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group on an ongoing basis. The Board is also committed to
review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least annually.

The Group established the risk management and internal control systems with
aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or losses caused by judgment in decision making
process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code,
the Board has engaged an independent professional firm as an outsourced
internal auditor to facilitate the Group’s internal audit function in order for the
Group to be equipped with adequate resources in conducting reviews as
required by the Stock Exchange. The independent professional internal auditor
firm also assisted the Audit Committee and the Board in performing reviews on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group has conducted an annual risk assessment which identified
respective strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks
for each of the major business operations of the Group. Risk factors were
analyzed and consolidated at the Group level. Based on the risk assessment
results following a risk based methodology audit approach, an internal audit
plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into respective annual
internal audit projects and manage the risks accordingly.

An annual review was performed by the independent professional internal
auditor firm according to the internal audit plan with a view to assisting the
Audit Committee and the Board to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2019. The review also covered the compliance of code provisions as set out in
the CG Code and all material internal controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls at entity and operational levels. The Company has
taken further steps to enhance its risk management and internal control
systems according to some control weaknesses that were found during risk
assessment and examination of the internal control system and strengthened
the implementation of all the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has established procedures in handling and dissemination of
inside information in an accurate and secure manner to avoid possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group. Release of inside
information is subject to the approval of the Board. Unless duly authorized, all
staff members of the Company shall not communicate inside information to any
external parties and shall not respond to market speculation and rumours. In
addition, all external presentation materials or publications must be reviewed
by the management before release.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established and
maintained by the Group, and the work performed by the internal and external
auditors, the Audit Committee and the Board performed an annual review on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and are of the view that the Group has
maintained effective and adequate risk management and internal control
systems during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Each of Mr. Zhou Chen (resigned with effect from 31 July 2019) and Mr. Wong
Yu Kit (appointed with effect from 31 July 2019), the company secretary of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019, undertook not less than
15 hours of professional training during the year under review in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that shareholders’ rights should be well respected and
protected. The Company endeavours to maintain good communications with
shareholders on its performance through interim reports, annual reports,
general meetings and public disclosure on the Company’s website
(www.1889hk.com) and the website of the Stock Exchange, so that they may
make an informed assessment for their investments and exercise their rights as
shareholders. The Company also encourages shareholders’ participation
through general meetings or other means. Specific enquiries and suggestions
by shareholders can be submitted in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Unit 5, 7/F, Nanyang Plaza, 57 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at general meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty- one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting or proposal to be
put forward at the general meeting can be addressed to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 5, 7/F, Nanyang Plaza, 57
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The requisitionists must
state in their request(s) the objects of the extraordinary general meeting to be
convened, and such request must be signed by all the requisitionists. Upon
receipt, the Company will verify the requisitionists’ particulars and if the request
is in order, the Company shall convene the extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with its articles of association.

CHANGE OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, there was no change to the articles of association
of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chengging, aged 44, is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and an entrepreneur with more than 20 years of experience in business
management in the PRC. Mr. Chen is currently the chairman of Guizhou
Changtong Cable Co., Ltd., the vice president of Pingba District Federation of
Industry and Commerce, the executive vice president of Anshun Zhejiang
Federation of Commerce, a member of Pingba District Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and the vice president of
Guizhou Wenzhou Federation of Commerce. He was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 17 February 2017. He is interested or
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of approximately 27.37% of the total
number of issued shares in the Company as at 31 December 2019.

Professor Zhang Rongqing, aged 64, was redesignated from an independent
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 15 September 2017.
Professor Zhang was appointed as the independent non-executive Director on
16 June 2017. He graduated from Suzhou Medical College in 1982 with a
Bachelor degree of medicine and received PhD in animal physiology and
biochemistry from Nanjing Agricultural University in 1993. Prof. Zhang has
worked as professor in Tsinghua University since 1998, and he has been the
associate dean of School of life Science in Tsinghua University. He is currently
a director of the Institute of Biomedical Research in Yangtze Delta Region of
Tsinghua University in Zhejiang, deputy director of the Teaching Guidance
Committee of Biological Technology and Bio-engineering of the Ministry of
Education, the member of the 3rd and 4th Advisory Group of Experts of the
“973” Plan in the field of agriculture of the Ministry of Science and Technology.
Prof. Zhang has received many awards and patents in science and technology.
He is a well-known senior expert in the field of marine biochemistry & molecular
biology, marine natural drug & gene engineering, and marine biological enzyme.
Prof. Zhang has been an independent director of Shenzhen Hepalink
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 002399), since May 2014. He is also an independent
director of Shandong Oriental Ocean Sci-tech Co., Ltd., a company whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002086),
since April 2017.

Mr. Gao Borui, aged 61, was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 26 July 2019. Mr. Gao has extensive experience in business, finance and
accounting management. Since November 1998, Mr. Gao has consecutively
worked as the chief financial officer, the chief accountant and the assistant to
the chairman for the group companies of Xiuzheng Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited* (1& 1F 823 & B i {7 /A PR 2 1), a limited company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and principally engaged in
developing, manufacturing and sale of healthcare medication and related
products, where he was primarily responsible for finance, budget and funds
management of the group. Mr. Gao passed exams in accounting and
graduated from Changchun Taxation College* (£ & &7 £F%) in Changchun
City, Jilin Province, the PRC in April 2001. Mr. Gao is a former member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Tonghua City, Jilin
Province, the PRC. He is a former executive member of the Chinese
Pharmaceutical Accounting Association* (Fh Bl 8 Z4 & 51 &) and the deputy

secretary-general of the Accounting Association of Tonghua City* (GB1L & 5t
2
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Mr. Yuan Chaoyang, aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 26 July 2019. Mr. Yuan has extensive experience in business
investment, development and management. He has been the director of the
strategic planning department and project director of Delixi Group Co., Ltd.* (&
VARiTE S A BR A 7Al), alimited company incorporated in the PRC and
responsible for the strategic planning and project management for the
company. From January 2017 to January 2018, Mr. Yuan served as the vice
president of project development in AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited, an
investment holding company principally engaged in natural gas, construction
material and property-related business, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 260). Throughout the period, Mr. Yuan was
primarily responsible for project development, operational efficiency, quality
control and public relations management. Mr. Yuan graduated from the
People’s Armed Police Command College, Fuzhou branch* (i 2@ | $5+8 £2f%)
in Fujian Province, the PRC, in 1991, majoring in Japanese Language. Mr.
Yuan completed his studies of enterprise management courses in the Graduate
School, Shanghai University of Finance and Economics* (/5 81 48 K £ 7T 4
Bt ) in July 2015 and obtained a certificate.

Mr. She Hao, aged 37, was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 11 November 2019. Mr. She holds a bachelor degree in bioengineering
from Xiang Tan University in 2005, and a master of business administration
from University of Electronic Science and Technology of China in 2013. He
served as a Research and Development Engineer and project supervisor in
Shanghai Biolaxy Medical Science and Technology Co. Ltd.* (/88 [ B B F}
A BR A 7)) (a pharmaceutical Research and Development institute, which
was then acquired by Anbo Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (Z 4RI AR A ),
a subsidiary of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd.* ( /818 2%
2 (£ @) K1 B BR A Al), responsible for matters relating to pharmaceutical
research and development from 2006 to 2011. He served as a quality manager
in Yifeng Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.* (& 2@ X ZE S EH R D AR 2 7)) (a
pharmaceutical circulation enterprise, a company whose shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: SH603939), responsible for
channel construction and government relations from the end of 2013 to the
end of 2014; He served as an investment manager, senior investment manager
and investment director in Fortune Link Investment Holdings Limited* (375 [&
BB B R A a)]) (a private equity investment institute), responsible for
investment matters in relation to pharmaceuticals and other greater health
projects from 2015 to 2017. He served as an investment manager in the
Investment and Development Department of Jiangmen Sugarcane Chemical
Factory (Group) Co., Ltd. (TP H /L Tk (£ E) B BRAR]), a company
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
SZ000576), responsible for investment matters from September 2017 to
November 2019. Mr. She has extensive experience in pharmaceutical research
and development, circulation and pharmaceutical investment.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xiu Yuan, aged 38, was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect
from 5 November 2018. Mr. Xiu graduated from the Economic Management of
Xian Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army. He is currently
the general manager of XiuZheng Pharmaceutical Group Marketing Co., Ltd.
and a Member of the Young Entrepreneur Committee of the All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, a director of the 11th China Youth
Entrepreneurs Association, and the founding director of the China Youth
Entrepreneur “00 School” club.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tu Fangkui, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 16 June 2017 and resigned on 30 June 2020. Mr. Tu is the
chairman of Shenzhen Farad Electric Co., Ltd with more than 20 years of
experience in business management. Mr. Tu obtained a master’s degree in
Business Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He is a member
of the Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice
president of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce and the vice president
of Shenzhen Electric Trade Association. Mr. Tu was awarded the title of “Young
Science and Technology Expert of Shenzhen”.

Mr. Wang Zihao, aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 16 June 2017 and resigned on 24 November 2020. Mr. Wang was
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). Mr.
Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Queen’s University of
Belfast in United Kingdom in 2006 and obtained a Master of Laws in Corporate
and Financial Law from the University of Hong Kong in 2016. Mr. Wang had
worked in KPMG Advisory (China) Limited for over 5 years. During his tenure,
he provided advisory services to various listed companies and large-scale
state-owned enterprises. Mr. Wang has been working in Tencent Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited since 2013. Mr. Wang has been the account
specialist member in China Emissions Exchange since 2015.

Mr. Long Jun, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 15 September 2017 and resigned on 30 November 2020. Mr. Long
graduated from Peking University Guanghua School of Management with an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree in 2009. Mr. Long has
served as the vice president and managing partner in Focus Media (China)
Holding Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Focus Media Information Technology Co.,
Ltd., the shares of which have been listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 002027.SZ2) since February 2014. He has more than 15 years of
management experience in the media industry.
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Professor Zhu Yi Zhun, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 31 December 2020. Professor Zhu graduated from the
School of Medicine of the Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree in Medicine in 1989, and then graduated from the School of Medicine
of the Heidelberg University with a doctor’s degree in Medicine in 1994.
Professor Zhu has been working on cardiovascular and neuropharmacology
research for nearly 20 years, and he is currently the first director and the chair
professor of the School of Pharmacy of the Macau University of Science and
Technology, and the Director of Zhunhai UM Science & Technology Research
Institute. Professor Zhu also had served as the Dean of the School of Pharmacy
of Fudan University for almost 10 years. He was also appointed as the
Changjiang Scholar Distinguished Professor of the Ministry of Education of the
People’s Republic of China, and awarded the National Outstanding Young
Scholars, the chief scientist of the National Major Scientific Research Program,
and was the person in charge of platform of new drug creation in a major
project in respect of the national science and technology.

Professor Zhu was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Green International Holdings Limited, the shares of which were listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2700) for the period from 4 March 2016 to 30
June 2017. He was also appointed as an independent director of [ Fa{ )R E
LB RN AR AF] (Shanxi C & Y Pharmaceutical Group Company, Limited®)
(stock code: 300254) for the period from June 2010 to July 2016 and an
independent director of JTFIH /L TR(SEE) R B BR AR (Jiangmen
Sugarcane Chemical Factory (Group) Company, Limited®) (stock code: 000576)
from August 2015 to May 2018; the shares of both of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

*

For identification purpose only
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The Directors would like to present their annual report together with the audited
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 49 and 50
respectively.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the declaration of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil) to the shareholders.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB176,694,000 (2018: RMB205,556,000). Movements in the
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year under review are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 52 and in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
under review are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
associations or the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares in the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Chengqing (Chairman)
Professor Zhang Rongging
Mr. Gao Borui
(appointed with effect from 26 July 2019)
Mr. Yuan Chaoyang
(appointed with effect from 26 July 2019)
Mr. She Hao
(appointed with effect from 11 November 2019)
Ms. Hung Hoi Lan
(resigned with effect from 26 July 2019)
Mr. Cheng Hoi Kai, Frederick
(appointed with effect from 9 May 2019 and
resigned with effect from 1 November 2019)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Xiu Yuan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Zhu Yi Zhun

(appointed with effect from 31 December 2020)
Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex

(appointed with effect from 3 February 2021)
Mr. Zhang Ruigen

(appointed with effect from 25 June 2021)
Mr. Wang Zihao

(resigned with effect from 24 November 2020)
Mr. Tu Fangkui

(resigned with effect from 30 June 2020)
Mr. Long Jun

(resigned with effect from 30 November 2020)

Mr. Gao Borui, Mr. Yuan Chaoyang, Mr. She Hao, Professor Zhu Yi Zhun, Mr.
Khor Khie Liem Alex and Mr. Zhang Ruigen will retire from office in accordance
with Article 86(3) of the articles of association of the Company and, being
eligible, has offered himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Professor Zhang Rongaging will retire from office by rotation in accordance with
Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company and, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2019.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management are set out
on pages 26 to 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (including Directors standing for re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has entered into any contract of service,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the executive directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The remuneration of
the non-executive directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
of the Company are recommended by the Remuneration Committee. The
details of emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has renewed the Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance for
all the Directors and the senior management of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of the corporate activities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the contracts of service entered into with respective Directors, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year under review.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme is set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of each of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO: or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO):and were required pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were
as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
shares Number of (Note 3)
(Note 1) shares Total BARE
Name of Director Capacity B EE options held Interest Bok
EENR 5% (M3E1) FisBRESE B (PfF5ES)
Chen Chengging Interest of controlled 836,753,000 (L) - 836,753,000 27.28%
corporation (Note 2)
BRAK B Ry LB (MisE2)
Beneficial owner (Note 2) 2,800,000 (L) - 2,800,000 0.09%
BExniEa A (fE2)
Professor Zhang Rongging  Beneficial owner 22,000,000 (L) - 22,000,000 0.72%
TREE B HIE EmEB A
Notes: PRRE
1) The letters “L” denotes long position in the shares. 1) [LIERRHFPZHE -
©) These shares are registered in the name of Cyber Success Global Investments Limited, @) ZERD AR E R E 2 EHA 2 BRIRIRIKIRE

which is wholly owned by Mr. Chen Chengging. Mr. Chen Chengqing is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Cyber Success Global Investments Limited is
interested by virtue of the SFO. Mr. Chen is also beneficially interested in 2,800,000
shares of the Company.

Q) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,067,222,500 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Company’s
Directors and chief executives had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code or which were required to be entered in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Old Share Option Scheme (as defined below) and the New Share
Option Scheme (as defined below), at no time during the year ended 31
December 2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES IN THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, had an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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BRARENRAARFENRR A M EEK
BT -
Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares shareholding

(Note 1) (Note 2)
Name of shareholder Capacity BAEE BAORERS L
REEE MHE 51 (BftEE1) (M5 2)
Cyber Success Global Investments Limited Beneficial owner 836,753,000 (L) 27.28%

RIBORIRE AR AT BEnEAA
Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the shares.

2) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,067,222,500 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2019.

Save for the disclosed above, the Company was not aware of any person who
had an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares in the
Company which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2019.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) for, among others, the senior management and employees on 8
January 2007, which serves as incentives or rewards to attract, retain and
motivate staff. Details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 16 June 2017, the Company
was adopted another share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
for, among others, the senior management and employees, which serves as
incentives or rewards to attract, retain and motivate staff. The New Share
Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2017 (provided that the Company, by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the operation of the New
Share Option Scheme). Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant options to all full-time employees, Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) and part-time employees with weekly working hours of 10
hours and above, of the Group, substantial shareholders of each member of
the Group, associates of the directors and substantial shareholders of any
member of the Group, trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, and any
advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant, distributor, supplier, agent,
customer, joint venture partner, service provider of the Group whom the Board
considers, at its sole discretion, has contributed or contributes to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue on the date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme
(i.e. 233,877,250 shares, representing approximately 7.63% of the Company’s
issued shares as at the date of this annual report), without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. No option may be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The number of shares issued and to
be issued in respect of which options granted and to be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the date of grant, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The grant of share options to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates requires the approval of the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding an independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
share options). Options granted in any 12-month period to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive Director or any
of their respective associates representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant or with an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.
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Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. A share option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the New Share Option Scheme at
any time during the period to be determined and notified by the Board to each
grantee, provided that such period of time shall not be more than ten years
from the date of grant. The New Share Option Scheme does not specify a
minimum period for which a share option must be held nor a performance
target which must be achieved before a share option can be exercised.
However, the Board may, at its sole discretion, determine such terms and
impose such other restrictions on the grant of a share option. The exercise
price is determined by the Directors, and shall not be less than the highest of (j)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the offer date which must be a
business day, (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

On 24 May 2018 and 30 May 2018, 115,400,000 and 118,000,000 share
options (the “Share Options”) under the New Share Option Scheme were
granted to grantees respectively. On 7 June, 8 June, 14 June and 19 June
2018, an aggregate of 195,100,000 Share Options were exercised by the
grantees. The following table discloses movements in the Share Options during
the Reporting Period:

ERMBRER  ARABAXMN1.008T
FTARRAREREERE BREATXGOES
SETLBANZARAZEBHRARENR
BRE NG ERTE - EXFHR
FENK L B AR TF - B RER 2 &
HIER R R R TR AT LA A B IR ERN
REBRRVAERZEEBR - A E
=R RNBEEEBIGN  LAR
HER R EE MRS - ITRERESEE
EABERAT=E 2&=E - ((NELHAH
(AREER)ARRBMD ZWHE : ()R
EXNHHRIAERSHZARRRD FIHR
WE R (i) RAF RN EE -

R N\ERA-FTHBR-_Z—N\FER
A=+8  BEHHEREE - 115,400,000
1% 12.118,000,000 15 B B& 2 ([ BB BREE ) E 2 5
BIEBEA - BN-_ZE—N\FAtH" <A
NBH - NATHBEERANATALA  ERAE
171# 4 $£195,100,000 1D BB AE - TRIBER
s HI R AR e 2

Number of share options
BREZR
Closing price
of the shares
immediately
Cancelled or At before
At lapsed 31 December the date of
1 January Granted during Exercised 2019 grant
Category of 2019 during the year during RZE-hE Exercise Exercise BERE
participant RZB-NF the year FREH the year +=H Date of grant period price BHARG
SEALER -A-H FRRL EP3: FRTR =+-B RitBH d e ke
(HK$) (HKS)
(B71) ()
Employees in aggregate 36,300,000 - (1,500,000) - 34,800,000 24 May and 24 May 2018 to - -
30 May 2018 29 May 2023
(Note)
EEAH 36,300,000 - (1,500,000) - 34800000 —ZT-N\&F —Z-\E - -
TA=+MmA ATA=-+mA
kAA=+H S 3
TA=-tAhH
(Fisst)
Non-employees in aggregate 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 30 May 2018 30 May 2018 to - -
29 May 2023
(Note)
FEELEH 2,000,000 - - - 2000000 =—E-N\f -\ - -
TA=tH TA=+AZ
—Z-CE
EAZtAA
UiE3)
36,800,000 - - - 36,800,000

Note: The Share Options are not subject to any vesting period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’” emoluments on an individual and named basis and

the fiv

e highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements. The remuneration policies of the Group are
as follows:

The C

The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the employees is
determined according to their relevant experience, responsibilities,
workload, contributions and years of service in the Group and with
reference to the goals and objectives of the Group;

The non-monetary benefits are determined by the Board (or by the
relevant management after consultation with the Board) and may be
provided in the remuneration package of the Directors or the employees;
and

No person participates in the deliberation or approval of his own
remuneration package.

ompany’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as

follows:

)

(i)

(i)

the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by case basis
taking into consideration of the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the Board to the
relevant Directors under their remuneration package; and

the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board and in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules, with share
options under the share option scheme adopted by the Company, as
part of their remuneration package.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information of revenue and purchases attributable to the major customers
and suppliers of the Company for the year under review is as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods HEEmBREMS
or rendering of services PR # Fr 15 U 2

The largest customer BAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate hAAREFPEH

Purchases BEE

The largest supplier BAHER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAHEEA L

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (who to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers and major customers noted

above.
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LIMITED ACCOUNTING BOOKS AND RECORDS OF
SUBSIDIARIES DISPOSED

Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation and explanations for
accounting books and records in respect of Hong Kong Sanai Health Care
Products Company Limited and Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (2018 Disposed Companies’’) that being disposed for the year ended
31 December 2018 (‘2018 Disposal’’), and in respect of Wuyi International
Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Limited and Fujian Sanai Biotechnology
Limited(**2019 Disposed Companies”) that being disposed for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2019 Disposal”), the audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
disclaimed.

There was no difference in view on the Audit Qualification between the Auditor
and the Company’s management. The Audit Committee of the board of
directors of the Company (the “‘Audit Committee’’) has reviewed and concurred
with the management’s view.

Since the 2018 Disposal had been completed on 31 October 2018 and the
relevant financial figures of 2018 Disposal Companies would no longer be
included as comparative figures in the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020, this audit
qualification has already been removed from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Since the 2019 Disposal had been completed on 30 April 2019 and the
relevant financial figures of 2019 Disposal Companies will no longer be included
as comparative figures in the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ending 31 December 2021, the management is of the
view that this audit qualification will be removed from the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2021.

PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

Due to the uncertainties in relation to the litigation to the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company, the Auditor had been unable to obtain
supportable evidence for the Auditor to assess whether provision of litigation as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were fairly stated and whether the profit or
loss effect on the provision of litigation for the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 were properly stated. Together with the disclaimer of opinion issued
by the Auditor on financial information of 2018 Disposal Companies and 2019
Disposal Companies for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Auditor had
issued an overall disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statement
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

There was no difference in view on this basis for Audit Qualification between
the Auditors and the Company’s management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed and concurred with the management’s view.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 February 2021, the
Company has lodged an appeal against the judgement to the Higher People’s
Court of Beijing (the ““BJ High Court”) on 22 January 2021. The appeal
application is expected to be heard and final judgement to be handed down by
the BJ High Court in the 4th quarter of 2021, and by then the provision of
litigation could be ascertained and, the Company will discuss further with the
Auditor the relevant financial effect to the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2021.

Accordingly, the management is of the view that this audit qualification is
expected to be removed from the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ending 31 December 2021.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save for the events disclosed below, there was no other major subsequent
event occurred since the year ended 31 December 2019 up to 30 April 2020.
Please refer to the Company’s annual report 2020 for events subsequent to 30
April 2020.

Litigation

The Company has received a civil judgement (the “Judgement”) dated 22
December 2020 issued by 1t 11 2 IO 4 A REPBT (the No. 4 Intermediate
People’s Court of Beijing®) (the “Court”) in relation to a litigation (the “Litigation”)
brought by 1t R XL R L E T E MDA R AT (Beiing Cultural Technology
Finance Lease Company Limited*, the “Plaintiff’) against, among others, (a) the
Company; (b) Fujian Sanai, the disposal of which was completed in April 2019; (c)
Lin Ouwen, a former executive Director; and (d) Lin Min, a former executive
Director.

The Plaintiff first filed a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) with the
Court on 30 August 2018, whereby, among others, the Plaintiff alleged that (i)
Fujian Sanai, a then subsidiary of the Company, had entered into a finance
lease agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement”) with the Plaintiff on 21
March 2016, pursuant to which the Plaintiff agreed to lease certain assets to
Fujian Sanai for a term of 36 months with a total leasing cost of
RMB134,954,600 and an interest rate of 8.3%; (i) each of the Company, Lin
Ouwen, who was a then executive Director, and Lin Min, entered into a
guarantee agreement with the Plaintiff respectively to provide joint guarantee
(the “Guarantee”) for the debts owed by Fujian Sanai under the Finance Lease
Agreement; and (i) Fujian Sanai had failed to pay the rent payable under the
Finance Lease Agreement since 20 August 2017, and the Company, Lin
Ouwen and Lin Min had failed fulfill their obligations as guarantors. The
Statement of Claim was received by the Company in July 2019.

As such, the Plaintiff demanded, among others, that (i) Fujian Sanai immediately
pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent in the amount of RMB33,855,032.69
with the default interest accrued thereon, undue rent in the amount of
RMB47,592,982.21, default payment in the amount of RMB4,759,298.22
(being 10% of the undue rent), the legal fees in the amount of RMB800,000,
the retention purchase price of RMB100 and the cost incurred in relation to the
Litigation; and (i) the Company, Lin Ouwen and Lin Min be jointly liable for the
debts owed by Fujian Sanai under the Finance Lease Agreement.
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The Plaintiff also submitted to the Court a copy of the alleged minutes of the
Board meeting (the “Board Meeting”) held on 22 March 2016 during which
resolutions (the “Resolutions”) were passed to approve, inter alia, the provision
of the Guarantee by the Company. However, only two of the then Directors, Lin
Ouwen and Lin Qingping, were shown to have attended and voted on the
Resolutions.

Pursuant to the Judgement, among other things, Fujian Sanai shall, within ten
days of the Judgement, pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent under the
Finance Lease Agreement in the amount of RMB33,855,032.69 with the default
interest accrued thereon, the accelerated due rent under the Finance Lease
Agreement in the amount of RMB47,592,982.21, the default payment in the
amount of RMB4,759,298.22, the retention purchase price of RMB100, the
legal fees in the amount of RMB800,000, the announcement fees in the
amount of RMB2,650, the preservation insurance fees in the amount of
RMB175,636.06 and the preservation fees in the amount of RMB5,000
(collectively the “dudgement Amount”); and the Company, Lin Ouwen and Lin
Min shall be jointly liable for the Judgement Amount, and they are entitled to
claim against Fujian Sanai after discharging of such joint liabilities.

The Company has lodged an appeal (the “Appeal”) against the Judgement to 1t
B ARERR (the Higher People’s Court of Beijing*) on 22 January 2021.

Pursuant to the Appeal, the Company has pleaded to 1t R = A& A AR (the
Higher People’s Court of Beijing*) to rule that the Finance Lease Agreement and
the Guarantee were invalid, and to reject all of the Plaintiff’s claims.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
18 January 2021 and 4 February 2021.

Outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic

After the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be implemented in the PRC
and worldwide. The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC and the
subsequent quarantine and travel restrictions measures imposed by the PRC
Government in early 2020 have had a certain impact on the operations of the
Group including suspension of factory operation for a period of time during
2020.

At present, the Group’s operation is generally stable. The Group will continue
to pay close attention to the development of, and the disruption to business
and economic activities caused by, the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position, cash flows and operating results of
the Group.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

On 3 February 2021, Mr. Khor Khie Liem Alex (“Mr. Khor”) has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, chairman of each of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination
committee.

On 25 June 2021, Mr. Zhang Ruigen (“Mr. Zhang”) has been appointed as an

independent non-executive Director, a member of each of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee.
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Upon the appointments of Mr. Khor and Mr. Zhang, (i) the Board has three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Professor Zhu Yi Zhun
(“Professor Zhu”), Mr. Khor and Mr. Zhang which is in compliance with Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, (i) the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board in compliance with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules; (jii) the Audit Committee comprising three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Khor (chairman), Professor Zhu and Mr. Zhang
and is in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; (iv) the Audit
Committee has at least one of the independent non-executive directors who
must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules; (v) the Remuneration Committee comprises a majority of independent
non-executive directors and is chaired by an independent non-executive
Director and is in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules; and (vi) the
Nomination Committee comprises a majority of independent non-executive
directors and is chaired by the chairman of the Board and is in compliance with
code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance principles and practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 13 to 25 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group did not make any charitable donations
(2018: Nil).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. Based on
specific enquiry made with all Directors, the Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code, throughout the accounting period
covered by this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or any of their connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to or involved in at the end of the year under review or
at any time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at
the end of the year under review or at any time during the year under review,
and no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year under review or at any time during
the year under review.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors had an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict of interest
with the Company during the year under review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board has established an
audit committee on 8 January 2007, with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the financial reporting
procedures and internal control and risk management systems and provides
guidance in relation thereto. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Company as well as the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 before recommending to the
Board for approval.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 have been audited by Crowe Horwath
(HK) CPA Limited and Crowe (HK) CPA Limited respectively. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 have
been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted
at the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited resigned as the auditors of the Company with effect
from 23 February 2021 and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited was appointed as
the new auditors to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited to hold the office of auditors of the Company until the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board confirmed that there was no disagreement with Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited and the Company.

Save as disclosed above there were no other changes in auditors of the
Company during the past three years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Performance and Future Development

The discussion on the Group’s business performance and future development,
being part of the Directors’ Report, is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The analysis of the Group’s key financial performance indicators, being part of
the Directors’ Report, is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

Our newly launched products may not be well received by the
market.

The success of a pharmaceutical company depends, to a large extent, on
whether the products it introduces to the market are well received by the
market. The primary factors which may affect the acceptance of our products
by the market include efficacy, quality and price. In particular, the introduction
of new products requires substantial investment of capital resources and
research and development efforts. If any of our new drugs is not well received
by the market because its efficacy is not as good as expected, it is too
expensive compared to other substitutes, or for any other reason, we may not
be able to recoup the investment we have made in developing such new drug,
in which case our financial condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR INDUSTRY

The pharmaceutical industry is extremely competitive.

Our business is subject to competitions from other pharmaceutical
manufacturers. Chinese and international pharmaceutical manufacturers
engaged in the manufacture and sale of substitute or similar products to ours
in China may have more capital resources, better research and development
capabilities and more experience in manufacturing and marketing. Many of our
competitors, including large pharmaceutical companies and other generic drug
manufacturers, have employed various strategies intended to maximize their
market share for previously-patented products. Competition is likely to intensify
if (i) the number of manufacturers or distributors of substitute or similar
products increases due to increased market demand or increased prices; (ii)
competitors drastically reduce prices due to oversupply of products; or (iii)
competitors develop new products or substitute products having comparable
medicinal applications or therapeutic effects that may be used as direct
substitutes for our products which are more effective with prices comparable
to or lower than our products.

Our Company is subject to environmental regulations and may be
exposed to liability and potential costs for environmental compliance.
We are subject to the PRC laws and regulations concerning the discharge of
effluent water and solid waste during our manufacturing processes. We are
required to obtain certain clearances and authorizations from governmental
authorities for the treatment and disposal of such discharge. Any violation of
these regulations may result in substantial fines, criminal sanctions, revocation
of operating permits, shutdown of our facilities and obligation to take corrective
measures. Our cost of complying with current and future environmental
protection laws and regulations, and liabilities which may potentially arise from
the discharge of effluent water and solid waste, may adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The government may adopt more stringent environmental regulations and there
is no assurance that we will be at all times in full compliance with these
regulatory requirements. Due to the possibility of unanticipated regulatory or
other developments, the amount and timing of future environmental
expenditures may vary substantially from those currently anticipated. If there is
any unanticipated change in the environmental regulations, we may need to
incur substantial capital expenditures to install, replace, upgrade or supplement
our pollution control equipment or make operational changes to limit any
adverse impact or potential adverse impact on the environment in order to
comply with new environmental protection laws and regulations. If such costs
become prohibitively expensive, we may be forced to modify, curtail or cease
certain of our business operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection to the
sustained stable development of enterprises. Striving to strike the best balance
between cost control and environmental protection, the Group consistently
executes various measures on clean production, energy saving, reducing
consumption, etc. The Group also carries out regular reviews on various
environmental protection measures and routine jobs, to ensure that all
environmental protection permission and approval required by the regulatory
authorities of the PRC will be granted.

In the meantime, the Group endeavours to create an environmentally- friendly
work environment to promote the environmental awareness to employees by
encouraging them to use less electricity and paper, and recycle office supplies
and other materials.

The Company shall issue the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
separately in accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules in due
course.

LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE COMPANY

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing, marketing and selling of
branded prescription and non-prescription drugs as well as Chinese
pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The production of all pharmaceutical
products must comply with the current Good Manufacturing Practice standard
of the PRC, and be approved by the China Food and Drug Administration. The
Group also needs to comply with the Production Safety Law, Law on
Employment Contracts and Company Law of the PRC. As the shares of the
Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company is
also required to comply with the Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group is not aware of any
occurrence of material breach of laws or regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

The Group acknowledges that as the PRC is in the midst of the critical period
for healthcare system reform, relevant laws, regulations and policies regarding
the healthcare and pharmaceutical industry will be updated frequently. Hence,
the Group will pay close attention to the updates and timely implement
measures required by the relevant laws and regulations so as to ensure the
business and operation are free from adverse effects.
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IMPORTANT RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Group endeavours to develop and maintain good working relationship with
the employees. The Group provides its directors and senior management with
continuous professional training, including seminars and workshops, such that
the latest changes of regulatory requirements and corporate governance
practices can be introduced and considered. Aiming to raise the operational
efficiency, the Group also organises various pre-employment and on-the-job
trainings to deepen the employees’ understanding of its business objectives
and operation. In the aspect of safeguarding the occupational safety and health
of employees, the Group spares no effort to provide employees with a safe
work environment and enhance their health and safety awareness. In addition,
the Group provides competitive remuneration, rewards program, retirement
and medical benefits to attract and incentivise employees.

Suppliers

The Group selects the suppliers prudently and requires them to satisfy certain
evaluation criteria, including track records, experience, financial strength,
reputation, ability to manufacture high-quality products, etc. The Group has
developed long-term collaborative relationships with various suppliers and
endeavours to make sure that they comply with the Group’s commitment to
quality and ethics.

Sales Agents and Distributors

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to drug stores through sales agents
and distributors. The Group requires the sales agents and distributors to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations and the Group’s marketing
policies. The Group also collaborates with the distributors by providing training
for their frontline salespersons to ensure that they provide high-quality sales
services.

By order of the Board

CHEN CHENGQING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2021

*

For identification purpose only
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ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANAI HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
C—EREEXEEARAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Sanai
Health Industry Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 135, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
1. Limited accounting books and records of subsidiaries disposed

As disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the
disposal of Hong Kong Sanai Health Care Products Company Limited
and Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“2018 Disposal
Companies”) have been completed on 31 October 2018 (“2018 Disposal
Date”). Also, the disposal of Wuyi International Pharmaceutical (Hong
Kong) Company Limited and Fujian Sanai Biotechnology Limited (“2019
Disposal Companies”) have been completed on 30 April 2019 (“2019
Disposal Date”). Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation
and explanations for accounting books and records in respect of 2018
Disposal Companies for the year ended 31 December 2018; and in
respect of 2019 Disposal Companies for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018, we were unable to carry out audit procedures to satisfy
ourselves as to whether (i) the income and expenses for the year ended
31 December 2019 included in the profit for the year from discontinued
operation amounted to approximately RMB148,093,000; (i) the income
and expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018 included in the
loss for the year from discontinued operation amounted to approximately
RMB215,475,000; (jii) the assets and liabilities as at 2018 Disposal Date
and 2019 Disposal Date and the following assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2018; and (iv) the accuracy of the disclosures in relation to
2018 Disposal Companies and 2019 Disposal Companies as included in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, have been accurately
recorded and properly accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R RETRE

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued) FTERRERAZER (&)
1.  Limited accounting books and records of subsidiaries disposed 1. BEHEKNBATNERERIEE
(Continued) PR (&)

42 to the consolidated financial statements, we have been unable to
obtain supportable evidence for us to assess whether provision of
litigation of RMBnil as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are fairly stated
and the profit or loss effect on the provision of litigation for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are properly stated.

£ o i

ST /8RS

At 31 December

2018
R_ZT—)\F
+=ZA=+—H
RMB’000
AREFTT
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Property, plant and equipment M BB K& 30,481
Land use right It {F AR 3,827
Deposits for the acquisition of non-current assets WHEIERBEE & 46,760
Inventories e~y 2,057
Trade and other receivables B 5 FE WK TE K H b FEULGRIA 38,308
Tax recoverable AU [ 7 TE 302
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 749
Trade and other payables B 5 e 0B & B S 3R IE (31,682
Secured bank loans BEFIRITER (233,792)
Deferred tax liabilities REHEAE (5,031)
Net liabilities FAE (147,921)
2. Provision for litigation PR SN
Due to the uncertainties in relation to the litigation as disclosed in note =) B 75 R 2% B 52 42 P it BR EE AR

MAEBNTEERE  BFEEEREX
CAFERBEAABIIN-F
—NERZE-N\F+A=1+—RNH
FABBAREZIL  URETEEH
BE—Z-NFR-ZF-NF+-A

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points 1 to 2 above might
have a significant consequential effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 and the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and 2018, and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.

=t RLFERBBENERETE -

155 1 3 2 AT B R E AR AL B
% EREBE-T-AFR-TN\F
+= A=t BULFEOS AR A RS
ARSHENR EEER-F-NFR-
T N\ET=AST-AMSARBRL
REBAUBER T ANRBEEEBANE
RYE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
iR ¥ - T

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 16 July 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—ZT—hFE+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
S —T &
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE AR¥FT AREFIT
(Restated)
(#&E5)
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue &= 8 81,854 58,024
Cost of sales and services rendered THE RIRHARTS 2 KA (79,742) (51,243)
Gross profits EH) 2,112 6,781
Other income and other gain, net E AU A R E A M e
R 9 2,678 9,383
Distribution costs Paki= %N (248) (52)
Administrative and other expenses TR EMAY (25,602) (28,449)
Finance costs A& A AR 10(a) (27) (60)
Written-off of inventories FEME (1,505) (5,374)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 20 (12,914) -
Impairment loss on other receivables H A WA AR (2,174) (187)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEEREERE (2,377) -
Loss before income tax BRETERATE R (40,057) (17,958)
Income tax credit FEHiEL 14 444 3,678
Loss for the year from continuing BESEERFAESE
operations (39,613) (14,280)
Discontinued operation BRIEEK
Profit/(loss) for the year ERIFEBFA
from discontinued operation w®HL (E5E) 12 148,093 (215,475)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF, (B 10(b) 108,480 (229,755)
Attributable to: BT AL B4 :
Owners of the Company PiN/NETE 2 =N
— Loss from continuing operations — BEKGEERER (39,141) (14,280)
— Profit/(loss) from discontinued operation — BERIEER
wmAl (EE) 148,093 (215,475)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners RATEE AEM
of the Company AL (EE) 108,952 (229,755)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M A
— Loss from continuing operations — BELEEBEE (472) -
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests 3F 2 i # 25 FE 45 5518 (472) -
108,480 (229,755)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF(BA)
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) ERRES (ARES) 16
— from continuing and discontinued operations — &KL & [
B IEERS 3.5 (7.7)
— from continuing operations — BEEET (1.3) 0.5)
— from discontinued operation — BRILER 4.8 (7.2)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEEsRkEMZEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —Z—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(HR) 108,480 (229,755)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Ht 2w (FiE) s
Items that may be reclassified HAE e B 7 E 218w HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINER EREH
foreign operations (473) 267
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRE2EmKE(FE)AE
for the year 108,007 (229,488)
Attributable to: BT AL FE4h :
— Owners of the Company B NEIE Z=N 108,479 (229,488)
— Non-controlling interests — JEPERR R (472) -
108,007 (229,488)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Land use rights

Goodwill

Investment in associates

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Finance lease receivables

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Finance lease receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Secured bank loans

Tax payables

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deposits received
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

As at 31 December 2019

FRBEE

ESN S
ERERE

T A

Gk

KB N E) 2 E

R e REMmERTIA
BmIZEE

EEH AR E
BATEERURIA

RBEE

&

B SRR K
HoAth fE U IR
AR B IR
BEMEEREA
BAFERARE
SREE

R MREEHEY

REAME

B 5 A R S H A A R
BEMRITER

e TR IR

BERBEE(BE)
REERRBDAE
FRBEME

Bz
EIERR B (E

FEE
BAXREE
P

fFE

E/NCIE RN T e
FEIE R e

HiEn

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 135 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 July 2021 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Yuan Chaoyang
=]
DIRECTOR
EFE

e B ISR R

REZE—J$ I oA=08

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR¥T T AREFTT
17 10,750 30,489
18 4,660 -
19 = 3,827
20 = =
21 - -
24 23,705 59,100
22 38,824 28,507
30 1,555 -
25 98,095 9,027
177,589 130,950
23 4,329 10,914
24 66,589 108,127
17 302
25 = 91,305
26 651 6,387
27 4195 17,745
75,781 234,780
28 62,249 48,437
29 - 233,792
984 1,221
63,233 283,450
12,548 (48,670)
190,137 82,280
28 = 5,722
30 2,571 5,031
2,571 10,753
187,566 71,627
31 28,601 28,601
151,405 42,926
180,006 71,627
7,560 -
187,566 71,627

FAOE 1B EMNGEVBREER T —
FLATAALESSERTETE I

BAUTATREES
She Hao

RE

DIRECTOR

EF

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRTREAELE
Share Statutory Non- Non-
Share Share option Special Capital surplus  Translation distributable A lated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
BE 7
BE  RGEE BRERE HHRE  EXRE  BUEE  EXRE  ARRE  RHER M FRRES At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETR ARBTT ARMTR ARETT ARETL ARETT AR%ET:
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\§-A-H 27,000 1,195,575 . (124,106) 53,000 263,411 (630) 23752 (1,218,886 219,225 - 219,225
Total comprehensive FREEEBES
loss for the year - - - - - - 267 - (229,755) (229,488) - (229,488)
Transfer to statutory BB ELTRGHE
surplus reserve - - - - - 363 - - (363) - - -
Equity settled share-based IR EE R AER
payment transactions 2325 (Wi 35)
(note 35) - - 10,481 - - - - - - 10,481 - 10,481
Shares issued upon exercise of  FMT{FEERER T2
share option (note 31) TR13 (Ri3E31) 1592 59,379 8,767) - - - - - - 52,204 - 52,204
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RMBAR
(note 12) (K3 12) - - - 45,850 - (26,745) - - - 19,105 - 19,105
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+-ZA=t-8 28,601 1,254,954 1,714 (78,256) 53,000 237,029 (263) 23,752 (1,449,004) 71,521 - 71,521
At 1 January 2019 R-F-N¥-A-H 28601 1,254,954 1,714 (78,256) 53000 237,029 (263) 23752 (1,449,004) 71,521 - .52
Total comprehensive FREANGEE
income for the year = = = = = = 473) - 108952 108479 472) 108,007
Forfeiture of share option SRR (i 35)
(note 35) - - (67) - - - - - 67 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHE AR (P 11)
(note 1) - - - - - - - - - - 8,032 8,032
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMEAR
(note 12) (RtzE12) - - - 67,840 (63,000 (236,752) - (23752 245664 = = =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+-A=1+-A 28,601 1,254,954 1,647 (10,416) = 217 (736) - (1,094,321) 180,006 7,560 187,566
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Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax
— From continuing operations
— From discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance cost
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets/land use right
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on bargain purchase
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of land use rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Write-off of inventories
Dividend income
Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

Loss on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Impairment loss on property,

plant and equipment
Impairment loss on land use rights
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Impairment loss on other receivables

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Changes in inventories

Changes in trade and other receivables

Changes in trade and other payables

Changes in finance lease receivables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Income tax paid
— The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”)

Net cash (used in)/generated
from operating activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

REFHRERE
BRPrS AT (B51R), & T
— FREEE
— BRIEER
RTHIRIERE

MEUA

BAEKAE
HEME - BE LR
AREFRELE/
T Az W
HEMB ARz K
#EBE R

ME - BB MR
e
EREEENE
3 i P AR A

B EESH

7 585

A B UA

VAt 2 A8 E AR AR
AERER S H
BATERABRZ
SREEZER
ME - BB &
RERERSR

T3 A HERE R 1R
R EEE

B EERERE
B SRR R ERER
H b e W SRR (B & 1R

BEES B2
WERSRE
R

B 5 R HOR R E
RUHBL D)
85N AR
B HORR
RA TR E TR

REEBH (A, FERE
ENAEHR
— REARAMNE
(TR E D)

REEH (A,
REFHE

Note
B3

12

10(q)

12
"

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z—hF+-_A=+—HILLFE

2019 2018
—E—hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
(Restated)

(F=E7)
(40,057) (17,958)
148,093 (165,734)
(580) (1,161)
4,189 15,975
(43,277) (32,458)
(112,154) (196,613)
(754) -
1,009 14,765

96 -

- 2,256

1,809 -
1,505 9,877
= ©)

- 10,481

422 3,467

- 146,001

- 1,197

12,914 -
2,377 -
1,664 972
2,494 189,649
(20,250) (19,293)
3,903 18,012
(11,958) 5,014
13,633 40,570
2,237 (27,472)

(12,435) 16,831
(519) (429)
(12,954) 16,402
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv_\ /E\ Eﬁ ﬁ 5ﬁ % %

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E—hF —\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P EE ARET T ARBT T
(Restated)
(F=E5%1)
Cash flow from investing activities RETHZEERE
Interest received BUF & 875
Repayment from loan receivables B EWRIE 2 B = 25,000
Dividend received Bk S = 9
Deposits paid for purchase of non-current MEEIERDEE
assets EffHEE - (59,100)
Addition of intangible assets REEBEEE (17) (28,507)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BE L&A (1,866) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEUE - BER
plant and equipment BABATSRUE = 3
Addition of financial assets at fair value NELNFEERA
through profit or loss BRZemEE (6,939) (38,260)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit of loss % mﬂaé‘?Zﬁﬁ?—% g 12,253 28,285
Net cash outflow from acquisition of U RE I
subsidiaries Bem 5%%5 11 (3,853) -
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEME A7l
HenFE 12 @1) (25,024)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFARSTFE (439) (96,719)
Cash flow from financing activities METHZEERE
Interest paid 2RFLE (27) (15,975)
Proceeds from issue of new shares, BT’ TS
net of issuance costs (FIBREEATRAR) = 52,204
New bank loans FERITER = 45,306
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER = (48,150)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEES (FrA) e
from financing activities REFHE (27) 33,385
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBRELZEYWR L FHE (13,420) (46,932)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HHEEK
HEZEY 17,745 61,725
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes  SMNEER% )~ & (130) 2,952
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—H#
HERBELZEY 4,195 17,745
Analysis of the balances of cash and HERBESEEY
cash equivalents HEERDT
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+-—A=+—HH
RWENBEELEEY 4,195 17,745
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z—hF+-_A=+—HILLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 March 2006 and registered as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Companies Law”) and acts as an investment
holding company. Its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 1 February
2007. The address of the registered office of the Company is Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
had been changed from Unit 1309, 13/F., West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong to Unit 5, 7/F., Nanyang Plaza, 57
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
are set out in note 40.

Reference to the announcement dated 24 January 2020, the trading of
ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has been
suspended with effect from 24 January 2020. In view of the Listing
(Review) Committee Decision, the Company is required to re-comply
with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules and resume trading within a period
of 18 months from the date of suspension. Should the Company fail to
do so by the expiry of the 18-month period, the Stock Exchange will
proceed with cancellation of the Company’s listing.

Reference to the announcement dated 8 January 2021, the Company
received a letter from the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2021 in relation
to resumption guidance for the Company including (i) demonstrate its
compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules; (ii) publish all
outstanding financial results and address any audit modifications; and (i)
re-comply with Rules 3.10, 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.
The Stock Exchange may modify the Resumption Guidance that have
been given and/or give further guidance if the Company’s situation
changes. Under Rule 6.01A of the Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange
may cancel the Company’s listing if trading in the Company’s shares has
been suspended for 18 continuous months, expiring on 23 July 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2019. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for the current
year and prior years except as stated below.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group was initially applied HKFRS 16 “Leases” with effect from 1
January 2019 and has taken transitional provisions and methods not to
restate comparative information for prior period. The adoption has
resulted in reclassification of right-of-use assets from land use right.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at their fair
values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It
also requires the directors to exercise the judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z—hF+-_A=+—HILLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss of
control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the
goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income (for example,
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income),
the amount that was recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised on the same basis as would be required if the previously held
equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of other
assets as stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment losses of
goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the
purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured at
the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair value
of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

FESHBEK (&)
EBEHREE

WHEER R EB A GBI E R
AIARR o WA AT iR PrEE EWE A
HIZ AYE - FRBITZBATA - FE
FzAENRERRETE - WHEER
BT AP AR B A I R R A B
REFX - RKEER - B AEZ AT
FEENBESZANER R 2T
Bt E -

WA Pl 7S R HE S 8 ) B A5 P BB 8 B RT R
MEENRBBZRAFHEZERIIIIE
A& ARAREEAIHANEERARS
RNPFEBHRBRE 2 ZBIREA
BRXAERR/ARAEGLHAEREZ
Y -

HROBETZEBAN  RACHAR
ZHBRBEZ RETRERIER SR
NP EEHFE - MAkEEZBRER
RABRRAER - ATESMAZR
WA ERE -

fERER A 2MBARZBEZEE
B E & U R (2N 1%
NP EFAEMEE RS R ZBAR
B) ARHEMmEERERER SR
TEERERE Z BER R ERERT
FR7AZ AR B AERERR -

BEGESEETRENRNNE RREMT
K1 REE FUR ] LR (E iy B SRS
EITRERF - ERRARZ A
EEEE - BRREBRZTEIE
BTG BRRAf 2 R EE 2
EBIAER - BEZEEBRNEEE
BmARNER - BREERATRD - plEE
AEME  BESRORETRRE WS
ZHRBEMELAN R ZREELS

fi

TRMT B X B 2 IR A s ) AR IR AR
PRI E A RN R E A2 AT
MEERBBZATFELIGE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z—hF+-_A=+—HILLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether the
Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of
significant influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of
that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure
the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(@

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities that
have a functional currency different from the Group’s presentation
currency are translated into the Group’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the exchange reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their costs less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Buildings 3.33% or over the unexpired
term of lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20%
Leasehold improvements 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Plant and machinery 10%-20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed annually or when there is any
indication that intangible assets has suffered an impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the assets, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated
at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are
as follows:

Land use right 2%-10%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial
direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment in the leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost; and

— Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit
losses.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not
meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest income and
dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost and finance lease receivables.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with
the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer with reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised product or service exceeds one year, the consideration
is adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer.
Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment are established.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all employees. Contributions to the
schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at
the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when
the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, which comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair
value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group constituting the discontinued operation.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the financial statements are identified from the consolidated financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Group if that person:

(i)

)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of the
following conditions applies:

U

(i)

(i

()

(vi)

(vii

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available for
use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets except goodwill,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the director has made
the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
and related depreciation/amortisation charges for its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. The estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives. It will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
review could result in a change in useful lives and therefore affect
the depreciation/amortisation charges in future periods.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Impairment of intangible assets

The policy for impairment of intangible assets of the Group is
based on an evaluation of their recoverable amount with reference
to expected future cash flows based on management’s
estimation. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the expected future cash flows from the Group’s
intangible assets. If the recoverable amounts are less or more
than expected than the carrying amounts of the intangible assets,
or changes in facts and circumstances which may result in
revisions of the estimated future cash flows, impairment or
reversal of impairment loss may be required.

Details of impairment loss and key assumptions are disclosed in
note 20 and 22.

(b) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 3. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit has been determined based on its value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates. There are a
number of assumptions and estimates involved for the preparation
of cash flow projections for the period covered by the approved
budget and the estimated terminal value. Key assumptions
include the expected operating margin, growth rates and selection
of discount rates, to reflect the risks involved and the earnings
multiple that can be realised for the estimated terminal value.
Management prepared the financial budgets reflecting actual
performance and market development expectations. Judgement
is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash
flow projections and changes to key assumptions can significantly
affect these cash flow projections and therefore the result of the
impairment reviews.

Details of impairment loss and key assumptions are disclosed in
note 20.

(c) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (2018: land use rights)

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (2018: land
use right) are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is determined with reference to the present value of estimated
future cash flows. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected or there are unfavourable events and change in facts
and circumstance which result in revision of future estimate cash
flows, a material impairment loss may arise.
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4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables and finance lease receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and finance lease receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sales.
The Group writes down slow-moving or obsolete inventories
based on an assessment of the net realisable value of the
inventories. Write-down of inventories will be made where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value
is less than cost. The determination of net realisable value requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of the inventories and the amount of inventory
written down in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and equity price
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and finance lease receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
credit-rating agencies.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2019 on trade receivables from the Group’s top five
major debtors and the largest debtor amounting approximately to
68% (2018: 85%) and 34% (2018: 33%) respectively of the
Group'’s total trade receivables.

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2019 on finance lease receivables from the Group’s
top three debtors and the largest debtor amounting approximately
to 100% (2018: 100%) and 49% (2018: 51%) respectively of the
Group’s total finance lease receivables.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated its
finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk
grading to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk
of default. The finance team uses publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own historical repayment records to
rate its major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5.

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the
following categories:

B EREE (&)

(b) EERE(E)
AEERITEERBFRIERE
BAT&EE

Category Description Basis for recognising expected
credit loss ("ECL")
=l it EREBEEER
([FEHEEBREWEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12 months ECL
have any past-due amounts
RiF B TF 77 6932 403 R R 1K e I MR A ) 28 HA KR 12 A ATEBEERE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
initial recognition
A&t B ¥R HERR LA SR AE B b e 2 15 0 HRREEEE - BEERE
In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
EH BREBRPAEECHREERE 2 HBEHEEREE — DHBREE
DERIE]
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
i gs EEBRPEBABRAREV NS  BASEWEIRIE MEERRIE
BRSO

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL on these items by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss
experience based on the past default experience of the debtor,
general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors
operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics (including high risk,
normal risk and low risk type).

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. All of the Group’s financial liabilities are due within one year.

(d) Interest rate risk
The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances, which carry prevailing market
interest. The management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5.

(e) Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments held for trading purpose classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange
and are included in the Hang Seng Index (the “Index”). Decisions
to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared to that of the
Index and other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity
needs.

1] Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.

(g) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

B E R EE ()

©

®

(9)

REERRR
AEEmEEEFRS A EEEMSEN
fREREMELREERES
BRBRERERRRRATFER
ABHNEBEE -

REBEBN EMREAEBRZM L
W A B A E( s
1)  EAREHEFHORET
RS A ERERESFHORER
HREH R AT RIERA{ELL
B ARAFEBRNRBESF K
s -

AT
BARBHRR RS KM ARE
SRAERS WA ERDERR
EBOATEIES -

Rt+t-ZA=+—HHE@MI A
Rl

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Financial assets: SRMEE
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEEH AIBZE 2
profit or loss TREE 651 6,387
Financial assets at amortised cost RBERATEC SREE
(including cash (REREERREEEY)
and cash equivalents) 144,467 201,693
145,118 208,080
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR SE AT B8 2 2R B & 53,345 281,143
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. AQFEFE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ANFEATBEL2HEERSGEBHERF
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants RS HEEET LN E Sk EE A &R
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value BE T ZBI& « LM T AT EEWER
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three AATEES - BIGEFEFTREAZ
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value: BOAE=EE4 st AFE
Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical FERBAZE  ARBRFEET
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date. S 2 AR A Ek B ENERTIS 2 W
B CRECTAEE) -
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 E_ERBAEE : REENBBEERE
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. SHEBRE G ASBE(EF—ELE
B2 IREBRIN) o
Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. BEZERRAE - EESABEZAA
RS A BUE -
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any REEZBER AERHBENE MR
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances BEEYNZER HBRZE=EAER
that caused the transfer. EfEE A REL -
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December: R+_A=Z+—BZ2AFEBHESE :
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRATLEER: @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
£-BR EZBR FZBR “E-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®T T AR¥TR
Recurring fair value measurements: REMATEE:
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEF ARG EREE
profit or loss
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB LM AES 459 = = 459
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong BRI FTIRAES - - 192 192
459 - 192 651
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRAATEER: et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
£-ER EZER FZER —Z-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARETFT ARETFTT ARBTT
Recurring fair value measurements: KEMATETE:
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZERHEE
profit or loss
Listed securities in Hong Kong BB FmESR 6,387 - - 6,387

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no
transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by
business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the board of the Company (the “Board”) (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
four reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

M

(i
(i)

(iv)

(@)

Pharmaceutical products: development, manufacturing, marketing
and sales of pharmaceutical products, sales of pharmaceutical
related software and provision of consultancy services;

Finance leasing: provision of finance leasing services;

Other general trading: trading of goods other than pharmaceutical
products; and

Genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services: provision of
genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Board monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, interests in an associate, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables attributable to the activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is “adjusted
earnings/(loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as including interest
income from bank deposits and interest exposure on bank
borrowings and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at
adjusted earnings/(loss), the Group’s earnings/(loss) are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and
other head office or corporate administration costs.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
profit/(loss), the Board is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest income, depreciation, amortisation,
impairment losses, finance costs and additions to non-current
segment assets used by segments in their operations.

—NETZA=+—HIEEE

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018 is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

Reportable segment (loss)/
profit (adjusted EBITDA)

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Written-off of inventories
Impairment loss on:

— other receivables

— trade receivables

— intangible assets

— goodwil

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

RESNIEFZ
2R B

AZHAHB(BR)EA
(BREBITDA)

FITEFMERA
MERX

FEREH

FENH
NTEEREER:
— B RUGUR
— BRRMGUR
- BVEE
-HE

T2HRINEE
FRFRBOBEERE

EEE: it

PEER (B
(@) oHXE BEERAEEGE
BRERSA B ARG (E8)
ZOMERIN  EEGRREMH
SEEREBKE - FIEKA
WrE - i ORERE  BEK
$&%/\* ®© Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ SERE D
_LB ﬁ F //J N
A2 AT BR RS
Pt AN B & 5T BERAER -
HE_Z-hLhFEFR_ZT-N\F
TZA= + HIEFE  BEX
%l?zi&“*ﬂZﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁu
CREEHRHTERGI
ﬁaé“f&nﬂﬁ’hﬁ%zfﬁ °
BE-2-NF+-A=1-8
LLFE
Discontinued
operation Continuing operations
BALEH BEGERY
Genetic
testing and
Other molecular
Pharmaceutical  Pharmaceutical Finance general diagnostic
products products leasing trading services Total
ERRARD F
BEER BEER RHERE Ht-REZ LUDERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARET:x
28 41,565 6,656 31,231 2,402 81,882
(1,192 1,247 1,447 (10,162) (831) (9,491)
- 1 = 3 - 4
(4,162) - - - - (4,162)
- (2,450) (k] (13) (448) (2914
- (240) - (1,265) - (1,508)
(320) - (1,034) (1,140) - (2,494)
(1,664) - - - = (1,664)
- - - - (2,377) (2,377
- = - - (12,914) (12,914)
- 36,647 106,749 52,240 1,287 196,923
- 27,561 - 106 16,229 43,896
- (18,019) (12,583) (3,799) (199) (34,600)
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7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers

Reportable segment (loss)/
profit (adjusted EBITDA)

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Written off of inventories
Impairment loss on:

— plant and equipment

— land use rights

— other receivables

— trade receivables

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

Note:

RENBEFZ
CES Gp: ¢

T2HEAB (BR) &R
(#8382 EBITDA)

BITRRMBLA
MERX
FEREH
FE#
ATEBRERSE:
— FiRE R
— LibfERE
— ARy
- BARYGA

TEHEIHEE

ERFRB I HEERE

TEHIHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

e ISR M EE

BE-FT-NFT-A=+—ALEE

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the year.

7. ZEERE)
() 2WPXEE BEEREGSGE)
BE-Z-\HFt+=-HA=+—8H
ILFE
Discontinued
operation Continuing operations
BRIEEH FEREEE
Pharmaceutical Finance  Other general
products leasing trading Total
BEER HEHE Ef-REH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
6,099 5,299 52,725 64,123
(24,287) 3,701 (5,423) (26,009)
107 - 3 110
(15,915) - - (15,915)
(17,013) - - (17,013
(4,503) - (5,374) (9,877)
(146,001) - - (146,001)
(1,197) - - (1,197)
(189,649 - - (189,649)
@72 - - 972
106,286 101,307 49,062 256,645
12,340 - - 12,340
(265,373) (6,785) (1,142 (273,300)
5T
P 2HSBEREIBEFEEZR
% o FRIW S EEEE -
ZEREEXEEARAT e ZE-NEFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue

from external customers
Elimination of discontinued operation

Consolidated revenue
from continuing operations

Profit or loss
Reportable segment loss derived
from Group’s external customers
Other income
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Impairment losses on
non-current assets

Wz
REIIEES T2
7 B

HIHODRIERE

FREGEEBRE Wa

Bl

B
KAAKEINEESZ
2% EEE

YL ON
FrEREH
BARA
FRBEEREER

Impairment losses on trade receivables & 5 & U 5018 6 (B &5 18
Impairment losses on other receivables H i i W 7% B (A 5 18

Unallocated head office and
corporate other revenue and
net income

Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses
— staff cost (including director’s

emoluments)

— others

Elimination of discontinued operation

Consolidated loss before income
tax for the year from continuing
operations

ROBLAEMER N AR EAM

L NS ON

AOBAMERRATFX

- BIRA(BREERHNE)

— Hft
HIHERIEETS

FHBREEBFABRASTA

FAER
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7. DHERE)
(b) TWEFFBUWE - BE - BE

REBEZHE
2019 2018
—E-hE - N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
(Restated)
(re=E31)
81,882 64,123
(28) (6,099)
81,854 58,024
(9,491) (26,009)
45,259 32,804
(2,914) (17,021)
(4,189) (15,975)
(15,291) (147,198)
(1,664) ©Q72)
(2,494) (189,649)
113,847 205,516
(3,928) (1,773)
(11,099) (28,415)
(148,093) 165,734
(40,057) (17,958)




7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

(b)

(¢

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Assets
Reportable segment assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Unallocated head office and
corporate assets
— intangible assets
— deposit for acquisition of
non-current assets
— others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Revenue from major products and services
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major

products and services.

Sales of pharmaceutical products

Genetic testing and molecular
diagnostic services

Sales of other goods for general
trading

Sales of fitness equipment

Sales of electric appliances

Sales of other software

Finance leasing income

Elimination of discontinued operation
(note 12)

Revenue from continuing operations

DEER (E)
(b) TWEFFBWE - Bz BE
REEZHR (&)
2019 2018
—E2-hF —E)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARBT T
BE
A2WHEEE 196,923 256,645
RAFEFAESEZ SRHEE
651 6,387
AOBLBWEE N AREE
—BEAE 28,507 28,507
— WIEIERBEEZ S
- 46,760
— Hfth 27,289 27,431
55,796 102,698
RABEE 253,370 365,730
=N
AZ2MOEBEE (34,600) (273,300)
BERIEAE (2,571) (5,031)
ROMBRPEERARIAE
(28,633) (15,872)
rhmai (65,804) (294,203)
() REXEERRERHEzZWE
UTAEREEREEZEMER
B2 WS DT -
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
HEBEERD 41,593 6,099
ERBB RS TEW2H RS
2,402 -
HEHM—MEHER
31,231 34,858
SHER S 3 - 3,565
HEE T M = 13,727
SHE B AL - 575
REREWA 6,656 5,299
B R IEER (FE12)
(28) (6,099)
BECEER RS 81,854 58,024

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Geographic information
(i) Revenue from external customers
The following sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers,
based on the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered.

Hong Kong B
The PRC =8
Europe BUM
Others Hi
Elimination of discontinued B RIS (HFE12)

operation (note 12)

Revenue from continuing BB RIS
operations

(i)  Non-current assets
No non-current assets information is presented for the
Group’s geographical location, as over 90% of the Group’s
non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) are
located in the PRC.

() Information about major customers

Sales of pharmaceutical products HEBEER
— Customer A* — BFA*
— Customer B* —EBFB

Sales of other goods for general trading $5%& Bt —f3 & FE
— Customer C —EFC

Customer A and customer B did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018, the figure shown was for
comparative purpose only.
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7.

2EER (E)
(d HEER
() HESBESZ W
TEREFHNEEREER RS
INERE P 2 W sk B P TE i
B2ER - BEMEME
RIEMHREHERTEM

ZhES -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
3,003 16,399
73,308 47,724
3,337 -
2,234 -
(28) (6,099)
81,854 58,024

(i) FRBEE
AEETE2INEHEIER
PEEMBRER - AR
LB B 90% K FEMENE
EMTREEEHEEE)
RIAFRE o

() FAHEEERFZEH

2019 2018
—2-ng —zE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR AR
21,739 -
9,044 -
30,783 -
20,619 16,400
20,619 16,400
51,402 16,400

y BEPAREFPBREEZE-F—N\
FH_A=T-RLFEIES
REBUTRHRA0% A EEH
PR F ML -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BE-FT-NFT-A=+—ALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

REVENUE 8.

The principal activities of the Group are the development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products, other general trading,
provision of finance leasing services and provision of genetic testing and

Wz

AEENEIREXHRRAE  BUE 5
WENMIHE B AR
Tt Rl E TH S ARG LA R SR ORI &2

Ht—RES

molecular diagnostic services. DFEYZERY -
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during FRERZSERNER 2 WA
the year are as follows: T~
Disaggregation of revenue &=y iy
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREF T
(Restated)
(5&E5)
Revenue from contracts with customers REZEF&SH 2 W
Sales of goods HEEm
— Pharmaceutical products — BEER 41,593 6,099
— Other goods for general trading — HEh—REFER 31,231 34,858
— Fitness equipment — REHEEM - 3,565
— Electric appliances — BFEM - 13,727
— Other software — HAugi = 575
Provision of genetic services and RHEEEER RS TEY
molecular diagnostic services 2 R T% 2,402 -
75,226 58,824
Revenue from other sources R EAMRIFZ W&
Finance leasing interest income ERERER BMA 6,656 5,299
81,882 64,123
Representing: 5
Continuing operations SE 81,854 58,024
Discontinued operation (note (12) BRI (EE12) 28 6,099
81,882 64,123

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are recognised at a point in time (2018: at a
point in time).

For sales of pharmaceutical products and products other than
pharmaceutical products, revenue is recognised when control of goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been accepted by
customers (acceptance) after goods delivered to the specific location or
picked up by customers. Following acceptance, the customers have full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,
have the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bear the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal
credit term is 30 to 180 days upon acceptance.

The Group provides genetic services and molecular diagnostic services
to the customers. Genetic services and molecular diagnostic services
income is recognised when the genetic services and molecular
diagnostic services is rendered and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the service.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

Wit (48)

WMo (48)
HE-_Z-hWF+ZA=+—HLHF
B AEEKXRERFANZKERE—
BEE(ZE—N\F: R—EM2)®

|
o ©

TLEHE B A M R B EEE AN E M
mE - RERZEHN#EEEZR(AIER
RNEFTHESEFRNEREREF
BEWER(BU)) FERKE - R
% BFEAEENBEAESHEIALE
MEE WHAEHEERZEZETMU
MEmMEERIBAZER - PERUE -
EEEEMAE30E180H -

AEERFPRHERRAES FEY
DE RS - ZRRBI R FEMD R
BRARRHER A LD FEYZE
IRISEFHER - BRI ZEEPERRG
ZARBEITEE -
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN, NET

Bank interest income
Loan interest income
Bond interest income

Total interest income

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets/land use right upon
mandatory auctions

Gain on bargain purchase (note 11)

Exchange gain, net

Sundry income

Dividend income

Commission income

Representing:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 12)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging:

a) Finance costs

Interest on bank borrowings
Other interest expense

Total interest expenses

Representing:
— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operation (note 12)

HRITABUA
B S IA
BEZ M BUA

MBWA B

REEHIRERHEYE  BE
FEARERREE,
T Az W

AERE W (1)
[ ye s
FETAULA

P BUEA

UHEA PN

1

B (MFE12)

a) EEREF
RITEE RS
H A 85 3%
SR R

5 :
— BREER(FIEE12)

9. HMWARHEMUESFHE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(L&)
4 110
- 765
576 286
580 1,161
43,277 32,458
754 -
1,073 6,503
271 1,714
- 9
- 1,568
45,955 43,413
2,678 9,383
43,277 34,030
45,955 43,413
10. FREE
FABESNRATSE :
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
(Restated)
(#eE7)
4,162 15,915
27 60
4,189 15,975
27 60
4,162 15,915
4,189 15,975

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 10. FRERE(E)
2019 2018
—E—-hF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
(Restated)
(geE5)
b)  Otheritems Hihm g
Continuing operations BEREER
Depreciation of property, Y - BEMREITE"

plant and equipment # 1,009 8
Amortisation of intangible assets mpEERE (MM 22)

(note 22) 1,809 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (M18)

(note 18) 96 -
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) F=2H0(FI3E13) 1,884 3,104
Other staff costs HMh 8 TR AR

— Contributions to defined — EEHIFRARE

contribution retirement plans e 117 1,000

— Share-based payments — Bt BER 2R - 8,232

— Salaries, wages and other —FHe IEK

benefits H AR F 5,397 4,611
Total staff costs * 18 TR 7,398 16,947
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Gl 3,627 1,652
Loss on financial assets at fair BAFEFABTZ

value through profit or loss CREEMEIE 422 3,467
Operating lease payments in MIEEMEZTH

respect of rented premises LETRERR = 1,399
Expenses relating to EREBEE AX

short-term leases 1,606 -
Cost of inventories* TFERA 78,831 51,243
Discontinued operation (note 12) B IEEK (FE12)

Depreciation of property, Y BEREETE!

plant and equipment * = 14,757
Amortisation of land use rights 4 {5 AR AR 6E (P EE19)

(note 19) = 2,256
Other staff costs HAb B TRA

— Salaries, wages and other — & IR

benefits HE A 1,076 5,853
Total staff costs * BB TR 1,076 5,853
Cost of inventories* FERK A 279 13,232
# Cost of inventories includes approximately RMB4,144,000 (2018: FERABEEE TR - HTE REE

RMB9,523,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation
which amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@

(b)

Acquisition of Fujian Yongchun Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Fujian Yongchun”)

On 25 October 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to acquire
51% equity interest in Fujian Yongchun at a consideration of
RMB7,650,000 which shall be settled by cash. The principal
activities of Fujian Yongchun are production, development and
sales of pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The management
considers that such acquisition will enable the Group to increase
new manufacturing bases of pharmaceutical products and enrich
product categories as well as expand sales network. The
acquisition was completed on 28 March 2019.

The consideration amounted to RMB7,650,000 has not yet
settled as at 31 December 2019.

Fujian Yongchun contributed approximately RMB28,392,000 to
the Group’s revenue and incurred approximately RMB964,000 to
the Group’s loss for the year respectively for the period between
the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition of Fujian Yongchun had been completed on 1
January 2019, the Group’s total revenue from continuing
operations and profit after tax for the year would have been
RMB82,956,000 and RMB108,280,000 respectively. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the total revenue and income and loss
after tax of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of Fujian Zhixin Medicine Co., Limited (“Fujian
Zhixin”)

On 29 March 2019, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire the entire
equity interest in Fujian Zhixin at a consideration of RMB2,000,000
which shall be settled by cash. The principal activities of Fujian
Zhixin are sales of pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The
management considers that such acquisition will enable the
Group to enrich product categories as well as expand sales
network. The acquisition was completed on 1 April 2019.

Fujian Zhixin contributed approximately RMB13,172,000 and
RMBB80,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition and the
end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition of Fujian Zhixin had been completed on 1
January 2019, the Group’s total revenue from continuing
operations and profit after tax for the year would have been
RMB81,854,000 and RMB108,452,000 respectively. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the total revenue and income and loss
after tax of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

1. WKREMEBELQTR

(€G]

(b)

KEBEEXKEREFRAA
TEEXE]
R=F—N\F+A=-+HB &
EEEBYFEF=ATVEEWH
AR E AR®7,650,0007T
U BE TR K B 51% IRHE - WIAIR
SHE BEXKENETEEKAR
TEHREEE  AHELEESEEE
W BEEERAIIBKREGEAR
EEENTNEEEREER
i LEERERRBEREER
i BB ER -_Z—NF=
AZ+N\HZEK -

KRB ARK7,650,0007TH -Z
—NE+-_A=+—BHERER -

BEXENWEBHPEREHE
AR Bl A A S B e W 25 B BR 49
AR #28,392,0007T » MBS A
EEELAFEBBEBHOARE
964,000 7 °

R —E—NF—HA—HBEZK
Wi Rk A - BIAREBENFER
FREEERTE 2 s R TLR
& A 1 5 Bl R A R % 82,956,000
TR AR 108,280,000 7T © #%E
ERHERFH I —FEE/N
EEEWEER-_Z—NEF—H
—HATRAERTERESZE
Yeas WA A R BR B IR 6518 2 5
13 I EHERARRER 2T -

KEEEZEEBHERAA
(K==
RZZE—NFZA-_1+NH &
EEERBYFEF=AHTVEEWH
- AR E A R ¥2,000,0007T
W REE 2 BB - WIAR
SHE - REEENTEEKS
THREEREER - EHEER
BUTERBELEEAEEERE
R R IERSHE ML - WHEKEE
RZZE—NFMNA—HBZKX °

BEEENREEHEHREHR
HARI D Bl A AR SR B O Yot I 4
i M E R AR # 18,172,000 7T
K& AR #80,0007T °

HWR=—ZT—NF—A—HBE=K
WHBEEEE  IAEENTER
BECEE 2 mlaE hRTE
&= A5G Bl A AR 81,854,000
7T & A R 108,452,000 7T © #
ZEAREMFR T —E1EA
REBEWREDR T NF—
A—BEANBERTERSS
BULES - WA BR B
BT MM EHERARRELZ ZTE

Al o

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—Z

11.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c)

Acquisition of Zentrogene Bioscience Laboratory Limited
(“Zentrogene”)

On 29 March 2019, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire the entire
equity interest in Zentrogene at a consideration of HK$19,500,000
(approximately RMB16,673,000) which shall be settled by cash.
The principal activities of Zentrogene are provision of genetic
testing and molecular diagnostic services in Hong Kong. The
management considers that such acquisition will enable the
Group to develop its precision medicine. The acquisition was
completed on 1 April 2019.

Zentrogene contributed approximately RMB2,402,000 to the
Group’s revenue and incurred approximately RMB3,215,000 to
the Group’s loss for the year respectively for the period between
the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition of Zentrogene had been completed on 1 January
2019, the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations and
profit after tax for the year would have been RMB83,753,000 and
RMB108,714,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
the total revenue and income and loss after tax of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2019, nor is intended to be a projection
of future results.

Portion of the consideration amounted to approximately
RMB2,763,000 had been settled by cash during the year ended
31 December 2019. The Group had settled the remaining portion
of the consideration amounted to approximately RMB13,910,000
through a non-cash transaction, for the detail please refer to note
41(a) to the consolidated financial statement.
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11.

WEEHE LR (&)

(©

I & Zentrogene Bioscience
Laboratory Limited
([ Zentrogene )
RZE-AF=ZR=Z+hIB &
SEEBYE=FIVEEW
# - A B 19,500,000 7T (&Y
A R #16,673,0007T ) W B
ZentrogeneAﬁﬁﬁﬁTZé A PAIR &
48 ° Zentrogene M = ZE K A
EEBRFEERBALD FED
DETRRTS - BIEERBULIERE
EEAEEERABEBSE
e BB E RN —T—NFH
A—B%K -

Zentrogene A W % H HR = R 45 HA
REIE 5 B AN = B oy e s & g
A ANRME2402,0007T ° HEHS
NEBMELEEBHBOARE
3,215,000 7 °

MR =ZE—NF—A—HEZEK
Ui 88 Zentrogene @ Rl A< &= B ##3%
BEREERFRNEIRE NG
5= 1% 9 Bl A A R ¥ 83,753,000
7T K& AR #108,714,0007T ° 5
ZEAREMFR T —EEA
AEBERBEER=ZZ—NF—
B—HERMIER NEREREZ
B - WA ARG BIREE 2
BT MM EHERARRERZTE
pEII

HE-_ZT-NF+ZA=+—H
FEFE BOREHDARE
2,763,000 CE NI &4 F - K
EEEFEBIERERHEENE
BEA ARYE13,910,0007T © =F
BER2HRAMBREMNG
41(a) °



11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

()

Acquisition of Zentrogene Bioscience Laboratory Limited

(“Zentrogene”) (Continued)

The following summarises the total consideration and the fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed and goodwill
arising from the acquisition of Fujian Yongchun, Fujian Zhixin and
Zentrogene at their acquisition dates:

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

Non-controlling interest
Goodwill
Gain on bargain purchase on

acquisition* (note 9)

Total consideration

B REE

nEk  BELRR

EREEE

EVAE

EEREAE

3t

B R RMGE R E YRR
QE{EE
BehAEEED
BHREMA RN EMENFUR
EXHEAR

BRTENIRZ
ERIFEERR

FFER RS

e
e 2 B s (B3 0)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

1. WEKREBXF &)
(c) 4 B8 Zentrogene Bioscience
Laboratory Limited
([ Zentrogene ]) (4&)
WERBEXKE BREEER
Zentrogene A& B Y15 H B 2 48
RIE - FANBEERAAERR
Z DB LA R P E A B i at an
™
(@) (b)
Fujian Fujian (c)
Yongchun Zhixin Zentrogene
QEEXE (b)ERZE  (c) Zentrogene
As at As at As at
28 March 2019 1 April 2019 1 April 2019 Total
RZZB-NE RZZ-REF RIB-1F
=ZA=+NA NA—-B mNA—H a@st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR NS ARBTT
9,280 105 550 9,935
4,756 - - 4,756
11,753 16 2,717 14,486
1,555 - - 1,555
679 176 - 855
33 4,860 954 5,847
- - 106 106
487 35 388 910
9,212 (3,149) (508) (12,869)
(2,938 - (448) (3,386)
16,393 2,043 3,759 22,195
(8,032 - - (8,032)
- - 12,914 12,914
(711) (43) - (754)
7,650 2,000 16,673 26,323
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

11.

12.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 1. WENBAR R
(c) Acquisition of Zentrogene Bioscience Laboratory Limited (c) 4 B8 Zentrogene Bioscience
(“Zentrogene”) (Continued) Laboratory Limited
([ Zentrogene |) (&)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on acquisition for the year ended 31 HE-_Z—h&F+=-A=+—H
December 2019: HFEREZRESRACRd)
FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET ARETR AREFTL
Cash consideration paid during the Hz-_Z-NF+-A=1-H
year ended 31 December 2019 IHEERNESRE - (2,000 (2,769) (4,763)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FER 2 REESEN 487 35 388 910
487 (1,965) (2,375) (3,853)

* The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of approximately * AEEREKEHERARERE
RMB754,000 in the business combination. The gain is included in other Wz 4 AR 754,000t B #
income and other gain, net (note 9). WS et AE AU A K B At Y 55 0F

H(fIE9) ©
DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL OF 12, BRALEBRHEHRBAT
SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+=-A=+—BLHF
E
(a) Disposal of Wuyi International Pharmaceutical (Hong (a) HEREEREX(FE)FR

Kong) Company Limited (“Wuyi HK”) and Fujian Sanai RATHREEE)REBE=F

Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Fujian Sanai”) BEERMNG([EE=F])

On 30 April 2019, the Group disposed of the entire equity interest RZZE—NFMNA=1+H &%

of Wuyi HK and Fujian Sanai with consideration of approximately BHERRAEREE-E2I

RMB9,000 where Wuyi HK engaged in investment holding and fig#E - REARLHARE0007T -

Fujian Sanai engaged in investment holding, develop, HARRRBFBEREREEZR M

manufacture, marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products. BR-ENREREER FE-

Wuyi HK did not carried out any business during the period. The B mMBEEREEBERE

disposal was completed on 30 April 2019 (“2019 Disposal Date”) e REAR REBABTERE

and the Group discontinued its development, manufacturing, FREH  WBEBHEER T

marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products business under —NEFMA=FTB(ZZ—NF

Fujian Sanai. HEBHD TR - mMAEED

IFEBRE=F2M% #E-m
155 HE B e B S S R TR TS o
(b) Disposal of Hong Kong Liumai Medical Group Company (b) HEZFEBNIEBEEEEGRA

Limited (“HK Liumai”) and Fujian Liumai Medical Services
Co., Limited (“Fujian Liumai”)

On 1 December 2019, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest of HK Liumai and Fujian Liumai with consideration of
HK$1. The disposal was completed on 1 December 2019. HK
Liumai and Fujian Liumai did not carry out business before the
disposal date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

On 31 October 2018 (“2018 Disposal Date”), the Group disposed of
Hong Kong Sanai Health Care Products Company Limited (“HK Sanai
HCP”) and Fuzhou Sanai Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Fuzhou
Sanai”) where HK Sanai HCP engaged in investment holding and Fuzhou
Sanai engaged in investment holding, develop, manufacture, marketing

and sales of pharmaceutical products.

(a) Analysis of the profit/(loss) from the discontinued

operation

Profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operation

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 12(b))

ERILEBER

B R R 2 s

12. BAILERERHEHRB QR (E)

BE-_Z—\F+-A=1+—HLHF
E
RZZE—N\FE+A=F+—B{T=ZZ—N
FHEBH] AEELERE=ER
BRARAR(EE=8FRER]) LS
M=BHEEERAR([BMN=E]) &
FPEE-ERERUESREER  mE
MEZBREIREER A% ®E-m
GHEEREEEEER -

(a) BARILEBEF(EE)DH

2019 2018
—2-NnEF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
35,939 (412,088)
112,154 196,613
148,093 (215,475)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL OF 12.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(@) Analysis of the profit/(loss) from the discontinued
operation (Continued)
The results of the discontinued operation from Wuyi HK and Fujian
Sanai for the year ended 31 December 2018 and for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 2019 Disposal Date, and the results of
the discontinued operation from HK Sanai HCP and Fuzhou Sanai
for the period from 1 January 2018 to 2018 Disposal Date, which
have been included in consolidated profit or loss, are as follows:

ERIEEBRHEWB AR (8)

EZ_ZE-N\F+ZA=+—HLHF

E (&)

(a) BRILEKBR(EBHE)TH
(#8)
HE-_Z-N\F+-A=+—8
HtFEERE-_Z—NF—HF—A8
E-E-NEHEAHIEHEK
BREEERBRE-EZERLL
E¥BESE UREZZ—N\F—
A—RE-—Z—- \EHEAHIE
HEEEEE=ZERERLEM
SEZERIEEBEEDH AR

HAERmMOT
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Period from Period from
1 January Year ended 1 January
2019t0 2019 31 December 2018 t0 2018
Disposal Date 2018  Disposal Date
HZZ-1%F B BZZN\F
—-A—HEZE —E-N\EF —HA—R%
—E-NF +=A —Z-N\F
HEBH =+—H HERH
HERE H5FE 1HHAf
Fujian Sanai Fujian Sanai  Fuzhou Sanai Total
BE=E BEZE BIN=% 5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT AREFT ARETT
Revenue Iz 28 6,099 - 6,099
Cost of sales and services rendered  $8& K IRt AR 7% 2 A AR (279) (13,232) - (13,232)
Gross loss £85 (251) (7,133) - (7,139)
Other income and other gain, net HUA R E U E 5 43,277 33,344 686 34,030
Distribution costs PIAMA ) (745) () (747)
Administrative and other expenses  {THL % E RIS (934) (22,995) (7,452) (30,447)
Finance costs RERA (4,162) (13,539) (2,376) (15,915)
Written off of inventories FEME - (1,755) (2,748) (4,503)
Written off of property, WE - BE KR EmE
plant and equipment - (42,476) (103,525) (146,001)
Impairment loss on amount FEWR R B R IR
due from fellow subsidiaries RIEEE - - (189,462) (189,462)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 B R E S 18 (1,664) (627) (445) 972)
Impairment loss on other receivables Bt i FIB R E 5 1B (320) - - -
Impairment loss on land use rights ~ + 3t/ &R EIE1E - (1,197) - (1,197)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETET AR (B51E) 35,939 (57,023) (305,324 (362,347)
Income tax expenses FrigRifx - (45,879) (3,862) (49,741)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRIEEBFR
discontinued operation wH,/ (88) 35,939 (102,902) (309,186) (412,088)

Profit/(loss) before income tax from discontinued operation for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 stated in consolidated
statement of cash flow included gain on disposal of subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND DISPOSAL OF 12.
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

ERERBREEHNBELE (R

BE-_Z—\F+-A=1+—HLHF

Disposal of subsidiaries

E (%)
(b) HEHBART

2019 2018
—E-hE —EN\F
Asat At 2019 At2018
1 December Disposal Disposal
2019 Date 2019 Date
R=B-h& R=B-NE RZB-N\E
+=A-H HERH —E-hE LERH
HK Liumai & Wuyi HK & Fuzhou
Fujian Liumai Fujian Sanai Total Sanai
BAAMR BRREA

REEAK REE=E o BN=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTR ARETTR ARETTR AREFL

Net liabilities disposed of FEFaE
Property, plant and equipments nE - BEREE = 8 8 -
Inventories FE - 2,032 2,032 -
Trade and other receivables B RN EREEKIE = 84,488 84,488 80
Tax recoverable o EE - 302 302 -
Amount due from group companies e INGE e - 2,239 2,239 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEN - 30 30 25,142
Amount due to group companies N EIENGE ] - - - (189,649)
Trade and other payables BORNTERE R (163) (30,061) (30,224) (4,879)
Tax payables JERHE - = = (988)
Secured bank loans FERRTER = (165,989) (165,989) 45,308
Deferred tax liabilties EEREEE - (5,081) (5,031) -
(163) (111,982) (112,145) (215,600)
Releass of reserve upon disposal REEBRBEE = - - 19,105
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBL R M 163 111,991 112,154 196,613
Total consideration BRE - 9 9 118

An analysis of the net cash flow arising on disposal of subsidiaries

HEMBARELZFRERD

was as follows: AT -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
Wuyi HK & Fuzhou
Fujian Sanai Sanai
REEB
REE=% BN=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Cash consideration BeRE 9 118
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FTH&ER SRR SEEY) (30) (25,142)
Net cash outflow arising from the HENBRARELZ
disposal of subsidiaries WEHFRE (21) (25,024)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 13. EERIERAEFAIZHE
EMOLUMENTS
(@ The remuneration of each director (@) BEZSzZHMH
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEEE R BEHI 5 383(1) 5 &2
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies NENEENFZEEWHR)FH5
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation —HoWBECESTHIMET W
are as follows: T
2019 —E-NF
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
Directors’ and other Discretionary scheme  Share-based
Fee benefits bonus contributions payments Total
e RE BAEN  URGA
ESHe REMER  BERBL O HEER  EBIAX At

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARETR ARMTT ARETR ARMTR ARERTR AR%TR

Executive Directors yiEs

Chen Chengaing (Chairman) — BRAkEE (£F%) 211 = = - - 211

Hung Hoi Lan HER (8 414 - - = = 414

Zhang Rongging ReE 106 - = - - 106

Cheng Hok Kai, Frederick HEm (o) 492 - - - - 492

Gao Borui el o) 91 - - = - 91

Yuan Chaoyang 85 (©) 91 = = = - 91

She Hao P d 29 = = = = 29

Non-Executive Director FHTES

Xiu Yuan (£33 El 106 - - - - 106

Independent Non-executive BYEHTES

Directors

Wang Zihao Ifx 106 - - = = 106

Tu Fangkui ERg 106 = = - - 106

Long Jun & 106 - - = = 106

Chan Chun Yin, Victor ks (0 26 - - = - %
1,884 - - - - 1,884
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 13. EERAEESHFALTZHME (H)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(@) The remuneration of each director (Continued) (@) BEZSZHM(E)
2018 —B-N\f
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
Directors’ and other ~ Discretionary scheme  Share-based
Fee benefits bonus  contributions payments Total
A= RIRER SARR TR

E3iEe  REAMEN  BRRA HERR AERZAR &t
Notes RMBOOO  RMB'OO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'00D
ME  ARBTT  ARBTL  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

Executive Directors BES

Chen Chengaing (Chairman) ~ [RAE (£78) 208 - - - 128 331
Hung Hoi Lan ey | 203 - - - 917 1,120
Zhang Rongaing REE 102 - - - 967 1,069

Non-Executive Director FHTES
Xiu Yuan BE €] 16 - - - - 16

Independent Non-executive B FHTEE

Directors
Wang Zihao I% 102 - - - 123 225
Tu Fangkui Eh# 102 - - - - 102
Long Jun 3= 102 - - - 114 216
Chan Chun Yin, Victor PRk ] 25 - - - - 25

855 - - - 2,249 3,104
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@ The remuneration of each director (Continued)

Notes:

@)

)

Ms. Hung Hoi Lan was retired as executive director on 26 July 2019.

Mr. Cheng Hok Kai, Frederick was appointed as non-executive director
on 9 May 2019 and resigned on 1 November 2019.

Mr. Gao Borui and Mr. Yuan Chaoyang were appointed as executive
director on 26 July 2019.

Mr. She Hao was appointed as executive director on 11 November
2019.

Mr. Xiu Yuan was appointed as non-executive director on 5 November
2018.

Mr. Chan Chun Yin, Victor was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 5 October 2018 and retired on 3 April 2019.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 13. EERIAEBESHFALIZME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b) EERESHFAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, included two hAEZEEHFALTH  BEMREE
directors (2018: two directors) of the Company whose RNAEF(ZE—N\F: WEE
emoluments are disclosed in note 13(a). The aggregate of the B BEZHEHEERKN T
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2018: three) 183@ - B T=R(ZF—N\F:
individuals were as follows: =H)ANTHS BN T ¢
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Salaries and other benefits e LEMET 948 1,157
Retirement benefit scheme RIKEFIFT B
contributions 22 30
Share-based payment LARKD B2 2 50 = 69
970 1,256
The emoluments of three (2018: three) individuals with the highest —H(ZE-N\F: =ZR)E=FH
emoluments are within the following band: AT 2ZBE N FT5ER

Number of individuals

A

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZE—N\F

Below HK$1,000,000 &7 1,000,000 7T 3 3

3 3
No emoluments was paid by the Group to the above individuals REFER - AN BB ST A A B
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as for loss T ERALT  1EREMARSE
of office during the year. None of the above individuals has waived [ o¥ 71 E 0 A S &2 (B AR Y B2 3k
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2019 and HBAE - NEEZZT-NER
2018. —E-N\F+ZA=+—HILF

E o i DR AL HEEEE
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES

Current tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)

Deferred taxation (note 30)

Representing:
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operation (note 12)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. FIBH (E&) BX

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

B HRIE
BEFBE - 268
PRI ERTER ([ ER ) 371 918
371 1,186
EEFLIE (FI3E30) (815) 44,877
(444) 46,063

5 :

— BB ER (444) (3,678)
— BRIEER(FIFE12) - 49,741
(444) 46,063

For PRC subsidiaries of the Group, PRC EIT is calculated at 25% (2018:
25%) in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
year ended 31 December 2019 as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year ended 31

December 2019.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_—_T—hF+_-_A=1+—HILFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and profit/(loss)
before income tax at applicable tax rates:

Profit/(loss) before income tax* BRATS AR (E58)*

Notional tax on (profit)/loss before tax, IR R 2 BT =R
calculated at the rates applicable STEBREA CEF), BB
in the countries concerned HZEMIA

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAIMREBERA BB E
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable JEFERR WA 2 RIS &
for tax purpose

Reversal of deferred tax assets B 18 LA BT F JE WSR2 IR AT
recognised in prior years HEEE

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBBBHBEE
Tax effect of temporary differences not AEREREE BB E

recognised

Statuary tax concession EEZRIBER

Effect of withholding tax on the AEEFTEMBA 2D
distributable profits of the Group’s Dl P e %R%?%
PRC subsidiaries

Income tax (credit)/expense for the year — F RIS (Ee), FxX

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 30.

Profit/(loss) before income tax comprised of loss before income tax from
continuing operations of RMB40,057,000 (2018: RMB17,958,000), profit before
income tax from discontinued operation of RMB35,939,000 (2018: loss of
RMB362,347,000) (note 12) and gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
RMB112,154,000 (note 12) (2018: RMB196,613,000).

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

14. FrB%H (E&), BIx ()
REARERFENTIE(KR) FxHE
BRFTEF AR A, (E5H8) HEEMT ¢

2019 2018

—B-NEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T
108,036 (1883,692)

30,111 (28,444)

3,414 79,772

(39,417) (59,980)

- 49,740

5,455 9,855

(7) -

= an

- (4,863)

(444) 46,063

IRAERTEFEIS S 30 ©
* KRFTS B AT (B8 ) BIER B8
MEEBZBREBHABEARE
40,067,000( =T —\F: AR
17,958,0007T) * RE B RIEE 2 BRET
5% Bl % FI| A R % 35,939,000 7T (=&
—)\4 : 51 AR 362,347,000 7T) (Fff
H1R2)REEMRBARZKEARE
112,154,000 7¢ (i 5E12) (Z T — )\ & ¢
AR 196,613,0007T) ©
15. KE

EETEERBE_ZT-NFR-Z
—N\F+ZA=+—BIEFERNEM
BB o

EREEREEERLA « ZE-NFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basis earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the
owners of the Company are based on the following data:

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company
for the purpose of basis earnings/(loss)
per share
— From continuing operations
— From discontinued operation

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basis
eamnings/(loss) per share

Pt EERERRR,(BE)

FARARBHEEA
FEMEFRET, (B18)

— FEREER
— BRIEER

KRB E

At EERERRF,(BR)
Pt PR 5B A 04 P 29 21

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the dilutive earnings/
(loss) per share was the same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share as
the impact of share options had an anti-dilutive effect.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

BRERN(FHR)
RATEE ARG BREREF (B
18) TR B LA T U -

2019 2018
—E-nE —E-NfF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

T-NE+ZAS+—ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COSsT

At 1 January 2018

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 12)
Disposals

At 31 December 2018 and

1 January 2019
Additions
Acquisttion of subsidiaries (note 11)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 12)
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2018

Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognised

Eliminated on disposal of
a subsidiary (note 12)

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal of
a subsidiary (note 12)
Eliminated on disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

17. 9% - BERZME

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
Building  improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
EER
g EE£E
BF MEEE  RBLERE RE BER#E @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
B
RZE-\5—A—-AH 209,526 - 44,116 5,446 1,531,319 1,790,407
HE—MMBAR (HiF12) - - (728) (4,311) (180,807) (185,846)
e (30,746) - - (188) - (30,934)
RZZ-\F+ZA=+-H
kZE-nE-A-H 178,780 - 43,388 047 1,350,512 1,573,627
NE - - 227 - 1,639 1,866
iR E AR (M 11) 6,175 1,273 234 53 2,200 9,935
HE-FNBAR (F12) - - (29) - - (25)
e (178,780) - (43,363) (991) (1,350,512) (1,573,646)
R BE - - (1) - (1) 4l
RZE-NF+=A=+-H 6,175 1,273 460 9 3,838 11,755
ZHTERAE
K=ZF-\§—A-8 186,404 - 43585 5,106 1,364,049 1,599,144
FRRX 613 - 55 17 13,980 14,765
BRRAEER 785 - 467 178 144,576 146,001
HE—RINBA AR
(MizE12) - - (728) (4,311) (180,807) (185,846)
HEREH (30,746) - - (180) - (30,926)
RIZ-\E+ZA=+-Ak
—Z-n§-A-AH 157,056 - 43,379 905 1,341,798 1,543,138
FRRX 498 66 £k} - 352 1,009
HE—RIME A AR
(H3E12) - - (17) - - (17)
HErE (157,056) - (43,362) (905) (1,341,798) (1,543,121)
AR - - (1 - &) @)
R=Z-AF+-A=t-A 498 66 ®? - 349 1,005
BRHE
RZE-NE+ZA=+-H 5,677 1,207 368 9 3,489 10,750
R=E-\F+=-A=+-H 21,724 - 9 42 8,714 30,489
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

EREEE

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AR®T T

4,660

2019
—g-ne
RMB’000
ARBT R

96

1,606

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18.
At 31 December: R+=ZA=+—8:
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Land use right — b A
Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=+—HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREAEZTES L
— Land use right — T fF A
Expenses relating to short-term leases BREEE ZAX
Disposal of right-of-use assets upon mandatory RHHERLECRAEEE

auctions

(3,827)

Additions to right-of-use assets through acquisition BRWE-—ENB AR EERREE

of a subsidiary (note 11) (FF3E11)

The Group leases various land use right in the PRC. Lease agreements
are made for fixed periods of 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

19. LAND USE RIGHTS

Analysed for reporting purposes as follows:

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Disposal
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
Transferred to right-of-use assets (note 18)

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2018
Amortisation for the year
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Transferred to right-of-use assets (note 18)

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Notes:

(0] As at 31 December 2018, land use rights with a net book value of approximately [0]
RMB3,827,000 was pledged to banks as part of the collateral against bank loans

of RMB2383,792,000 (note 29).

19. L ibfFE R
HEFABEZHHTWT ¢
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AREFIT
&S
R—Z—N\F—H—AH 64,030
HE (5,832)
RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
r—E-NAF—HA—HRH 58,198
EEREFAREE (M 18) (58,198)
RZZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H -
At BERREE
R—Z—\F—HA—H 56,316
F N 2,256
R NER 2 REEE 1,197
o 25 BRE 3 8 (5,398)
RZZ2—N\F+=—A=+—H
r—ZE-NEF—A—H 54,371
EREFAELE (M:E18) (54,371)
RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H -
REE
RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H -
RZE—-—N\F+=ZA=+—H 3,827

BieE

RZZ-N\F+ZA=+—8 " KEF
{EA4ARE 3,827,000 TTH) 1 (s F#E
BEFFRT FARTERARE
233,792,000 7T H)Z 45 # dh (M 7E29)

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—Z

—NETZA=+—HIEEE

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units (“CGU”) that are expected to benefit from
that business combination.

The goodwill of approximately RMB12,914,000 was derived from
acquisition of Zentrogene (note 11) during the year ended 31 December
2019 in which the goodwill is allocated to genetic testing and molecular
diagnostic services segment. At 31 December 2019, before impairment
testing, goodwill of approximately RMB12,914,000 were allocated to
genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services segment. Due to
changes in market condition, the goodwill and customer relationship
allocated to genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services segment
has therefore been reduced to nil through recognition of an impairment
loss against goodwill and customer relationship of approximately
RMB12,914,000 and RMB2,377,000 respectively during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

20. GOODWILL 20. B8
RMB’000
AREFT
Cost EJ?.ZF
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and A—E-NF—H—H - —N\F
1 January 2019 tZA=t—-BR=%F ﬂ¢ HA—H 107,055
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 11) WiE— MM B AR ATS (MR 11) 12,914
Eliminated through disposal of subsidiaries in I E M B A R (107,055)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NAF+_A=+—H 12,914
Accumulated impairment losses AN BEEE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and R=ZZE—-N\F—H—A8" —N\F
1 January 2019 T-A=t+t—BR=% ﬂ¢ H—H 107,055
Impairment losses BEEE 12,914
Eliminated through disposal of subsidiaries Py cfunk=1 ) -=WNCIEzw | (107,055)
At 31 December 2019 —hF+ZA=+—H 12,914
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NAF+A=+—H -
At 31 December 2018 R-E—\F+_A=1+—H -

EXBEHRBZRER KB OEE
ReELB((ReEEBM])  7AY
FREEBEHHESHE

HE-_Z-AE+-_A=+—8B1tHF
& R 8 W B Zentrogene (K 3£ 11) 2
EEHARKE129140007T 0 EHE
EBAREERRR RS FEMZE RS
DE e RZTE—AEFE+=—A=+—8"

RBENRAN BEHOARE
12,914,000 LE P EREERE A RS T
EMPE R DI - BARTIREE - B
2T NF+-A=+—HLFE -
FEREELEFHAERERREREY
B4 A R #12,914,0007C & A R #&
2,377,000 ' DEEZERBA LS T

EMPHRB OB EEREFPHERE
TRES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—-Z—hF+-_A=+—HILLFE

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU are determined on the basis of
their value in use (level 3 fair value measurements). The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue
are based on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
the residual period using the growth rate of 3% (2018: N/A). This rate
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the Group’s
genetic testing and molecular diagnostic services segment is 20.35%
(2018: N/A).

The goodwill of carrying amount of RMBnil had been eliminated through
disposal of Fujian Liumai during the year ended 31 December 2019.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

fRHEE

Carrying amount

The Group, through Fuzhou Sanai, held 49% of equity interest of Antu
County Guanghui Chinese Medicine Technology Development Company
Limited (“Antu Guanghui”). Antu Guanghui had not yet commenced the
business. Upon the completion of the disposal of Fuzhou Sanai during
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has no significant
influence on Antu Guanghui.

Also, during the year ended 31 December 2018, Wenzhou Sanyin
Company Limited (“Wenzhou Sanyin”) was set up and the Group shall
pay up RMB9,800,000 (being 49% of the registered capital of Wenzhou
Sanyin) of capital of Wenzhou Sanyin. As at 31 December 2018 and up
to 16 April 2019, Wenzhou Sanyin did not commence business and the
Group has not yet paid up the capital. On 16 April 2019, the Group had
disposed the 49% interests in Wenzhou Sanyin to an independent third
party.

20.

21.

B (&)

REELBEM 2 PIRESRIREERE
B(F=BRATFEFE)EE - BRRK
ERBEZIEZBRRRENPAR
T ERPRBEEN R EZ R
F® o NEEEARBR B A EERER
MREEEBMTTERRZ TSI HL
BATA R G RR R - BREERNED
EABURGLL A 2 REFHE
PBHEEE - REENRRSENBEE
PIR AR TR -

AR BIRIEE $ Y SHHEEER
RARRE RS HEEA - WBHH
PR R O% (= F — )\ Tl
A) o WA H U T BB T 2 F
BRI -

FARBEAE@BMERBA LD TEDD
IR HBEANEEREZHLRA
20.35% (—Z—/)\F : T@M) -

BE_Z-NAF+-A=+—HBIF
B BEREHEAREZIEABLE
TR /IRI S o

R AT 2RE
2019 2018
—E-hF —T\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AREFTT

AEEBBREN=ERFALEHEER
EMHBERERERAR ((ZEEE])
49% fHE - RRIEEM ARREER - 1
HE_Z—-\G+-_A=+—HILFE
TRHERMN=E%  ARFAYHREE
EXBEAZES -

o REBE=—E—-NF+_A=+—
BLEEE BN =BRERRAR(E
M=F])BEK  mASEAEZMNE
M=&&EREH ARH 9,800,000 7T (BN
BN = BFEMEARE49%) c RZF
—N\F+_A=+—BREE=-Z—N
FEMA+B BN=ZAEEAREE
B MAEBMEARBRER - R=ZF
—NFMA+RE  REEDEEMN=
B A% R ETEIE=T -
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228
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions

At 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 11)
Additions
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 12)

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019

Charge for the year
Impairment for the year

Eliminated through disposal of
subsidiaries (note 12)

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

RZF-NETZA=1+-R

S BERAE

RZE-\$-A-H"
ZE-\§+-A=1-H
k=Z-n%-A-AH

FRRX

FRRE

BREERBLRES (H5E12)

RZF-NETZA=1+-R

RAR
RZZ-NETZA=F-8

R-B-N\F+-A=t+-R

22, EVEE

Good
Product Manufacturing Other
development Customer Practice intangible
costs & relationship License asset
Patents Software (note @) (note b) (note c) Total
RPFLEE
ERFEAA BFER RERR  AtEVEE
REHN B (Wita) (Mf3Eb) (HriEc) at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT NS AREFT ARETT ARETT
24,080 3,984 - - - 28,064
- - - - 28,507 28,507
24,080 3,984 - - 28,507 56,571
- 16 2,117 11,753 - 14,486
- 17 - - - 17
(24,080) (3,984) - - - (28,064)
- x| 2,117 11,753 28,507 43,010
24,080 3,984 - - - 28,064
- - 340 1,469 - 1,809
- - 2,377 - - 2,317
(24,080) (3,984) - - - (28,064)
- - 2,117 1,469 - 4,186
- 3 - 10,284 28,507 38,824
- - - - 28,507 28,507
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

22. EREE(B)

Notes: B E -

() The customer relationship derived from acquisition of Zentrogene (note 11) during (a) ZEREFHMEAERANEBE-_ZT—hE+=
the year ended 31 December 2019 and is allocated to genetic testing and A =+—H1E4E 8 Zentrogene (P 5E
molecular diagnostic services segment. The useful live of the customer 11) > U HEEERE A R D FEYLEN
relationship is 6 years. R HE - ERPBEMNA{ERFE A6

& o
With reference to the impairment testing on the CGU of genetic testing and ZIBHI 20 TS HE RSB LD F 49
molecular diagnostic services segment in note 20, the customer relationship had ZERE D IR S E A B ERE A
been fully impaired during the year ended 31 December 2019. For the detail of A ZEBEFBEGEEREE-_ZE—NLF
the impairment testing, please refer to note 20. T+ A=+ BUHEFERBERE - B
BRERIHFS - B2BMEE20-

(b) The license represents the Good Manufacturing Practice license derived from (b) fEREHEE —_T-AE+_A=+—H
acquisition of Fujian Yongchun (note 11) during the year ended 31 December IFFEREEEKE(WE11) TSR T
2019 and is allocated to pharmaceutical products segment. The useful live of the HEREER IO EBREERD
license is 6 years. 2o MRRBA R FEAGF

() During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired an intangible (0 BE-_Z— N\F+-_A=1+—RHLHF
asset from an independent third party (the “Vendor”), which related to a right to B AEEA—BBIE=HTEH]
the economic returns on certain laundry shops in the PRC, at a consideration of WE—mEpEE  SREPEETFSE
RMB28,507,000. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the useful lives KRIENKERFEFN REAARK
of this intangible asset is indefinite pursuant to the terms stipulated in the 28,507,0007C c N ARIEER A+ RIE
acquisition agreement. WREHZEPTETRIGER 2B EERE

PRATEFAGE] ©
During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, due BE-Z—hF+-_A=1+—RHLLFE
to the changes in market condition, the economics returns on certain laundry ERANRERS  ARAmRES  F
shops in the PRC is unsatisfactory. The management in accordance with the BTG A E B RIS - B
clause of the agreement with the Vendor, had requested for the full refund from BRBESEE I IEGER  BkE
the Vendor. The amount of the above mentioned refund had been settled in June HEHEER . PMRRER T -_—4F
2021. NRAEE
INVENTORIES 23. #®E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E— )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT

Raw materials B 1,799 1,290

Finished goods IR G 2,530 767

Merchandise o = 8,857

4,329 10,914
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, BZRWFRRHEMEWRRIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 13,351 23,874
Less: Provision for loss allowance (note ¢) & : & 18%4E (M3 c) (68) 972)
13,283 22,902
Other receivables (note d) EoAth pE Wk E (B 3k d) 17,270 49,322
Investment in bond issued by a private BELERRETZES
company (note e) (fizEe) 11,622 11,390
Amount due from a related company JEU — R REE A R FIE 2 2
Prepayments and deposits (note f) TR EIE RiE S (HFE) 46,868 82,565
Other PRC tax receivables HoAh A B pE U R IR 1,249 1,046
90,294 167,227
Represented by: b=
Current BNEA 66,589 108,127
Non-current (note a) JEBNER (P 7T a) 23,705 59,100
90,294 167,227
Notes: BEE -
(@) Prepayments and deposits as at 31 December 2019 expected to be recovered (@ RZT-NF+_A=+—HEHERB

more than one year amounted to approximately RMB11,200,000 (2018:
RMB59,100,000). All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, BZEWFEREMEWIE(E)
Notes: (Continued) sk : (&)
(b) The Group normally grants credit terms of 30 to 180 days (2018: 30 to 180 days) (o) AEE—RAEBTFREI0E180H (=

to its customers. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 5. T—N\F :302180R)MEEH - 5
REEFEBEBERNE—SFE - SR
5

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables at
the end of the reporting period, presented based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

RBEHR - RBERAHRINGERER
BREINE S BUGTERER DT

2019 2018
—E-hF T\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within 30 days 30HA 5,333 305
31 to 60 days 31E60H 1,553 4,835
61 to 90 days 61290H 316 256
91 to 120 days 91E120H 802 721
121 to 365 days 1212365 H 3,527 15,377
Over 365 days iR 365 B 1,752 1,408
13,283 22,902

(©) Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: (©) B 5 BB GRIBR B 2 HR -
2019 2018
—E-hF —T—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
At 1 January n—A—HB 972 -
Increase in loss allowance for the year F N EIE R EIE 1,664 972
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries LS BT B A | ek (2,568) -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 68 972

AEBRMBEBYHRELNFIRL
% RA2RRBEEEERME
BH RN FENRBERERATIRER
- R ERREEEE - 25 RIK
BEEAZEFERREHARER A KRR
D - BEMEEEIBT RS AIEIEER -

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to provide for
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and invoice date aging. The
expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking information.

Within 311060 61t0 90 91t0120 121 to 365 Over

30 days days days days days 365 days Total

30HR 31Z60H 61Z90H 91ZF120H 121ZE365H BiB365A @t
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-hE+=A=+-A
Weighted average expected loss rate g5 TR HAE 1B % - - - - - 4% 1%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) [ElIE(ARETT) 5,333 1,553 316 802 3,527 1,820 13,351
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EEEEARETT) = = = = = 68 68
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F+ZA=t-H
Weighted average expected loss rate  JiEF35 TR EiE 18 % - - - - - 41% 4%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) EUFIE(AEETT) 305 4,835 256 721 15,377 2,380 23,874
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EiEEEARETT) - - - - - 972 972
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24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d

Included in the other receivables of approximately RMB7,524,000 (2018:
RMB964,000) represents interest receivables from finance lease receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, included in other receivable there are approximately
RMBS5,980,000 had been refunded in June 2021.

The bond receivables represents the investment in bond issued by a private
company carried at 5% coupon rate per annum dated 26 June 2018. The
maturing date was initially 105 days after the issued date. Through the
negotiation among the Group and the bond issuer, the maturity date had been
renewed to 15 April 2019.

On 4 March 2020, the Group had issued an demand letter to the bond issuer on
the request of the repayment of the bond receivable and the accrued interest.
The entire amount of the bond receivables and the accrued interests had been
settled in June 2021.

As at 31 December 2018, included in prepayment and deposits there are
approximately RMB59,100,000 non-current deposits, of which RMB46,760,000
was related to acquisition of properties located in the PRC. The receivables had
been disposed through disposal of Fujian Sanai during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Also, as at 31 December 2018, the remaining of non-current portion of the
prepayment and deposits of RMB12,340,000 represents the deposits for
acquisition of plant and equipment in PRC.

Approximately RMB1,140,000 impairment loss on deposits for acquisition of
plant and equipment had been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2019. The amount of RMB11,200,000 as at 31 December 2019 after the
impairment had been settled in 2021.

As at 31 December 2019, included in prepayment and deposits there are
approximately RMB28,701,000 relating to prepayment for other general trading
segment. The amount had been refunded from the supplier in June 2021.
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24,

B 5 B WCRIR K H Ath FE W =00E ()
BiRE : ()

©)

FPARMEMHIERN AR 7,624,000
T(ZT—\F: AR#964,0007T) &
A A R E R YFIRNFE

R-B-AFTZA=+—A - HAKR
i MBS 40 A R4 5,980,000 TE 23
SR ERARE -

BREFERER —RILE DRI BT
RZZE-N\FRAZHRAERAEEFH X
RERHES - B AL HEITAY
%105 H - BBAEEEFEHBEITALZ
MiER HHPEERE-_T—NFN
A+HhHE-

R-ZTZZF=ANAB  AEBRES
BITAB B RERERES REF
BH)ESR K - BURES KRBT S8
BER S -—FXAME-

RZZE—NE+-_A=+—8" i AHE

NHRERZRETFNIFNPRESHORAR
#¥59,1000007t © H F A R ¥

46,760,000 7T U BE I A R Bl 0 M 2
W-Bz2-_T—NF+-A=+—H1t
FEN EBEEKFECERLERER
=

o RZZ2—N\F+=ZA=+—QH "
TE 5018 R IR & K FE RN ERE0 > 60 84 T 0
2 A ANR#12,340,000 7T - BP UL EE AP ED
B RS RS .

BHE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HILFE
N BERBBBRE REFHEOREOA
R#1,140,000 TH REBE - K=&
—NF+ZA=+—HRERNEER
AR®11,200,0007T ' ERZZZ—%F

i
A o

RZT-—AF+=ZA=+—H it A&
5 FRIE R AZ & R H9 4 A R 5 28,701,000
THEEM-RESHINEMNRER
o EBER_S-_—F~AREHR
RAFE -
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FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Lease payments

BMEHERKRE

Present value of lease payments

HEMR HEARRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“®-nF  ZT-\F  C®-AE ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT AR®TT ARETT
Less than 1 year —£R 6,605 97,724 - 91,305
Between 1 and 2 years —FEREF 101,397 9,345 98,095 9,027
108,002 107,069 98,095 100,332
Less: Unearned finance income o RERB BN E (9,907) (6,737)
Present value of lease payments BENFHRE 98,095 100,332
Less: Amount within 12 months W 12EAREE
(shown under current assets) (RRBBETIE) = (91,305)
Amount receivable after 12 months 1218 5 & JEFIBE S 98,095 9,027
Notes: B 5E

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the finance lease receivables are secured over the
leased assets represented mainly by machineries and equipment.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral of finance lease receivables in
the absence of approval by the lessee. All the Group’s finance lease receivables are
denominated in RMB, the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

The weighted average term of finance leases entered into is 3 years (2018: 3 years) and
all the leases require repayment by installments. In the event the lessee breaches the
lease contract, the Group has the right to use or sell the assets leased and to call for full
or partial repayment of the outstanding balance of finance lease receivables. At the end
of the finance lease term, the lessee will be able to purchase the leased assets at nominal
price.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease
term. The weighted average effective interest rate is approximately 7.0% per annum
(2018: 6.7% per annum).

The management had negotiated with the lessee on the repayment of principal and
accrued interest of the finance lease receivables. The maturing date of the finance lease
receivables had been renewed to 31 December 2020 and June 2021 respectively. The
principal amount and the finance lease interest receivables had been settled in 2021.

RZB-NEFR=_F-N\F+-A=+—0 " &
ARERUHANIEN 2 AEAETEARER
@il o

EABRNRBHANBERT - AEERATHER
BB AT ERUGRIE 2 IR » AEE AR
EREHERKFIRGUAREE - ARER
HEREER TR -

BMEEEZ MBEFHERRIF(ZT—N\F:3
F) RBEASBENEHRES - HREAZ
RIBH - AEEEREAKHERHEREE - R
BAREAREREKABIEERERERK
REZ AREBHS - RREBENR - 2AAR
RREEERBEREEE -

REEBEEHR - BENEASRAAMEEE
A IETFHERFNENR7.0%(ZF—/\
FBF6.7%) -

BEEE A AE S REE A S YR
BHARSEEREE S - BUETEE K FIESIH
HESREMHA-Z-_ZEF+-_RA=+—HE=
T —FRA - ASHRBERERKFIEF S
ER-ZT-—FHE -
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 26. BRAFEFABZZEHEE

LOSS
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTRT AREFT
Listed equity securities on Hong Kong BB ETRAES 459 6,387
Unlisted equity securities on Hong Kong & 3E F R A E 5 192 -
651 6,387
27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. BEeRBRELEEY

R-B-AFE+-A=+—08 - R1746
BRIV FHTEFENT0.01%£0.3%

TFE—)\F :0.01%£0.35%) 5T & °
AR 3,227,000 L (ZZF—/\F : £
AR¥9,912,00070) K ik AN EE
SPAR B SINE B B AR

As at 31 December 2019, the bank balances carry interest at average
market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2018: 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum. Conversion of approximately RMB3,227,000 (2018:
approximately RMB9,912,000) into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ESEMNRERAEMENRIE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Trade payables B SRR 6,303 1,159
Payroll and welfare payables e REF 1,553 744
Accrued expenses EFER 8,836 20,499
Other payables E b 30E 36,424 24,949
Other PRC tax payables E b B S BT 229 189
Contract liabilities aHaE 3,104 897
Deposits received B iz e 5,800 5,722
62,249 54,159

Represented by: g
Non-current JEBNER = 5,722
Current BN ER 62,249 48,437
62,249 54,159
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 28.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

B 5 BARER b A FOH (8
RBEHR  HERAH2INE S E
NFRBRRE DT

2019 2018
—g-nE BT Syie-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

Within 30 days 30HR 3,941 55

31 to 60 days 31260H 239 -

61 to 90 days 61290 H 54 -

91 to 120 days 91E120H 33 -

121 to 365 days 121 2365 H 1,992 146

Over 365 days i@ 365 H 44 958

6,303 1,159

SECURED BANK LOANS 29. HIKIFERIT

2019 2018

S =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT

Secured bank loans BEBIRITER - 233,792

Notes: B &t -

@ At 31 December 2018, land use rights with a net book value of approximately (@) RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—8" EEZF
RMB3,827,000 (note 19) and property, plant and equipment with a net book B4R AR ¥ 3,827,000 7T 1 H#015 f 4
value of approximately RMB27,431,000 (note 17) were pledged to a bank as (M &F19) REEEmFENAARYE
collateral against the bank loans. The bank loans carry interest at fixed rates of 27,431,000 LI ~ B SE R & (BT
4.57% to 6.31% per annum. The security will be released upon settlement of the 17)BER T -BERT - ERRITER
loans. FIEIH S o SRITERURE T FFIR457%

Z631%TE - AHERARBIEESE
I RRRR o
(b) In 2018, Agricultural Bank of China initiated legal actions against the overdue (b) BB \E - R ERRRITHAHR

bank loans, and certain property, plant and equipment and land use rights which
were pledged to the bank were mandatorily auctioned through the local court in
Jianyang City, Fujian Province, China (the “Court”). Two auctions were
successfully held in 2018, and one auction was further held on 15 March 2019
for the pledged property, plant and equipment (@mounted to approximately
RMB30,525,000) and right-of-use assets (amounted to approximately
RMB3,827,000). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Agricultural
Bank of China received net auction proceeds of RMB77,629,000 (being the
gross proceeds of RMB78,000,000 minus of the relevant professional fees) for
settlement of the bank borrowings from the Agricultural Bank of China of
RMB67,803,000. The remaining bank loans were released through the disposal
of Fujian Sanai (note 12).

BEREREBERTE AETERRT
SRITHIME MR SR8 LA R Lt i
REZRPEREEZG T H AR
(BT D) asmE - ER=ZT—\ER
MBITMRAE SERZT—NE=
A+RBRT—XME  HECEAY
¥ BELBEHRHRSHEHNRBRARSE
30,525,0007T) REAELE (BN A
AR#3,827,0007T) c BHE-Z—NF
FTZA=Z+—HIEFE  FEBRERTT
EHRBMMEMSRBEFEARE
77,629,000 7T (B PR 1S B AR RE A R
78,000,000 TR A EXER) - EE
KEPERERITHBRITERARE
67,803,0007T © #4 NERITEFE A H &
RBE=ZFEEMR (MiE12) -

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EZEHIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised RAFENMBAEFENTEEHEREL
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: HEeE(BE)REEEHNT :

Related Impairment

depreciation loss on Impairment Withholding ~ Revaluation of

in excess of property, loss on taxon  assets upon

depreciation plant and landuse  distributable acquisition
allowance equipment rights profits  of a subsidiary Tax losses Total

hiE-m

BEFERE W% BER  IHERE  THRER  WELER
ZEBRE REAEER AEEE BB EftEE BEkR @

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—f—A (13,214) (35,174) (1,355) 9,804 - - (39,846)
Charge/(credt) to profit or loss RERRIR/GTA) 13,214 35,171 1,355 (4,863) - - 44,877
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+-A=t+-H
and 1 January 2019 k=F-NEF—-F-A - - - 5,031 - - 5,031
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 1) YrEEH B AR (FFiE11) - - - - 3,386 (1,555) 1,831
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 12) HEMBAR(HE12) - - - (5,031) - - (5,031)
Credit to profit or loss HARE - - - - (815) - (815)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+-A=1-8 - - - - 2571 (1,555) 1,016
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial SEBBRRREER
position
2019 2018
—E-hE —F-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets EIERITEE BE (1,555) -
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAEE 2,571 5,031
1,016 5,031
Withholding tax on dividends represents tax charged by the PRC tax B FEMBEERN P R ISR AR e
authority on dividends distributed by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC AR BB A T D IR I S UL E A
during the year. THIE o
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial

position (Continued)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of approximately RMB37,029,000 (2018:
RMB383,276,000) as at 31 December 2019 as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the tax losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
expire under current tax legislation except for tax losses of RMB824,000
(2018: RMB366,777,000) in PRC which is available for carry forward to
set-off future assessable income for a period of five years, as follows:

Tax losses will expired in:

2021
2022
2023
2024

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019
and 31 December 2019

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
At 1 January 2018
Share issued upon exercise of share
options (note a)

At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019
and 31 December 2019

—E-—F
—EF-—
T =F
—TmF
SERE -

FREEO0.01ETNERK

RZB-N\F+=ZA=+—H"

—Z-hEF-A-BRK
—ZT-hF+ZR=+—H

BRITRHE :
BREEO0.01 BT E B
RZZE—-N\F—A—H
T ERER T Z KD
(MisEa)

RZ_ZT—N\F+=-_A=+—8"

“E-NE-A-AR
—F-AF+=A=+—A

30. RIEBIE (&)
e MBAR R RE R ()

AEER_T—NF+A=+—H8¥
ERL R BIIEE B A A R 37,029,000
T(ZZ— N\ F : AR#¥383,276,000
T EREEFHIEEE - REAR/NIEH
BHr iR REBTANEEEA
FRIEE B LA S R R ERBR A - BRep
BEMmBIEREEARS824,000L(ZF
—N\%F: AR¥366,777,0007T ) 7] £
UK 8 A B AL F B9 SR 2R IR B AR A
S BIBBROTBE  BEEBETgS

H - REEITT

HIBEEBE TR REEIE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
- 60,600
- 204,332
148 101,845
676 -
824 366,777
31. BR

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
LimikE e &5
('000) HK$'000
(FA) FET
10,000,000 100,000
2,872,123 28,721
195,100 1,951
3,067,223 30,672

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shown in the consolidated and R+-—A=+—RHz2&&Kk
Company’s statement of financial RARB BT
position at 31 December

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary share rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2018, share options under the share option
scheme were exercised to subscribe for 195,100,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a consideration of approximately HK$63,958,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB52,204,000), of which approximately HK$1,951,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,592,000) was credited to the share capital
and the balance of approximately HK$62,007,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB50,612,000) was credited to the share premium account. An amount of
approximately HK$10,761,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB8,767,000) was
transferred from share option reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019

31. BA(E)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥ETT
28,601 28,601

EBEEA NG RERATREIROBE
REBRRARTREG LBRE—R -

LREREERARARBEETHY
ZRREHAL -

GEX

(@)

BHE-_Z-N\F+A=+—-HLHF
B BRI T 2 B EITEIAR
i 7N A 71195,100,000 % & 3@ ik - (K&
#3#763,958,000/8 T (M R ARYE
52,204,0007T) + H #491,951,0007% 7T
(HHERKARE1,692,0007T) 7+ A
AN i # 58 49 62,007,000 7T (HH & R
# AR ¥#50,612,0007T ) 7 AR5 3% (B
8% © 910,761,000/ 7L (HHE R H AR
#8,767,0007T) IR EAEE & 5 BOR
B ERRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_—_T—hF+_-_A=1+—HILFE

32. RESERVES

(@

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which a dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(i)  Special reserve
Special reserve represents the aggregate of:

— the difference between the consideration paid by a
subsidiary of the Company, Sanai BVI, for the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Fujian Sanai
and the nominal value of the paid-in capital of Fujian
Sanai pursuant to the group reorganisation in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
in 2007. The reserve had been released through
disposal of Fujian Sanai during the year ended 31
December 2019;

— the difference between the nominal amount of the
shares issued by the Company and the amount of
share capital of Sanai BVI acquired pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares in 2007; and

— the difference between the consideration paid for the
acquisition of additional interests in Fuzhou Sanai
and the carrying values of the underlying net assets
attributable to the additional interests in Fuzhou
Sanai pursuant to the group reorganisation in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
in 2007. Such difference was released upon the
disposal of Fuzhou Sanai in 2018.

32.

it

() AEENRESBEIEEFHELRK
SR KM 2 EKERARER
ARSEBREY -

(b) EHEIMEREDN

() Rz E
*ETFB?EJX%% NEER A
RN ARG & B RR AT R

FARRRBRER - EBEBERZ
FEORKREBEE AR
AABRNEERNAE
EI5BRTERHIZET o

(i)  HEIEE
Rl BIEIA T B IAN A
LR

- BEAZEHARAR
BONRZZEZLF
EHARETEEE
IR N/NESTE TSN
AI=EBVIgtUEER
B=F 2 IMER
NRELEE=F
§@§$EEW§

c BHARERE
E-T-NEF+=
A=Z+—HLFE
ERHERE=F
BERR

- BEREREARXF
BOR —TELF
tHmETREE
HEAREE LT
£ T (B 82 = & BV
WA 2 REH =
R

- RERBEARXF
BPR —FELF
trmETEEE
Ak EREMN=F
RESME 21 P ST AR
B oM =25
HamELAERFE
EREENEZRE-
ZEBR-_ZE-N
FHERMN=ZE®%R
FRER -

ERFEEXEEARQT « —E-NFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

32.

RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the capital contributions from
Mr. Lin Qing Ping, a former director and former shareholder
of the Company; and Fuzhou Hongyu, a company
controlled by Mr. Lin Ouwen, also a former director and the
former chief executive officer of the Company. The reserve
had been released through disposal of Fujian Sanai during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of their
profit after tax to the reserve until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital and thereafter any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund
can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can
be applied in conversion into capital by means of a
capitalisation issue.

Non-distributable reserve

In accordance with the Articles of Association of Fujian
Sanai, Fujian Sanai may appropriate funds to the non-
distributable reserve at the discretion of its board of
directors. According to the Articles of Association of Fujian
Sanai, the non-distributable reserve can be used to (i) make
up prior year losses; (i) convert into capital, provided such
conversion is approved by a resolution at a shareholders’
meeting; and (i) expand production operation.

Share option reserve

This comprises the portion of fair value of unexercised
share options granted to eligible participants of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 3.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3.
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

() Reserves of the Company

At 1 January 2018

Share issued upon exercise of
share options

Equity settled share-based
transactions payment

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019
Forfeiture of share option
Total comprehensive expense
for the year

At 31 December 2019

32. f#E(H#)
(c) ZADTEHE
Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve loss Total
R EE BRERE Yy il wE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL AREFTT AREFT ARETT
R-Z-N\F—A—H 1,195,575 = (1,039,704) 155,871
TEERERE T2 RN
59,379 (8,767) - 50,612
PAEREE ARG AERE
ZRHHR - 10,481 - 10,481
FRAZERAZBHE
- - (9,693) (9,693)
RZT-N\F+=ZA=+—A
k=Z-NF—-A—H 1,254,054 1,714 (1,049,397) 207,271
R R - 67) 67 -
FAZHERAZAE
- - (28,930) (28,930)
RIZ-NFE+-A=1—H 1,254,054 1,647 (1,078,260) 178,341

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 33. AQRGEEHBMRR

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT R ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTE A B2 ’E 76 76
Property, plant and equipment L/ E YN 42 -
118 76
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables Ho A FEUGRIE 213,759 234,059
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABREZ
profit or loss CREE 459 6,387
Cash and cash equivalents RERRLSEEY 204 179
214,422 240,625
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables E AthFE 308 7,598 4,829
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 206,824 235,796
NET ASSETS EEFE 206,942 235,872
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE
Share capital A% A 28,601 28,601
Reserves (note 32(c)) i (M5E32(c) 178,341 207,271
TOTAL EQUITY R 206,942 235,872

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 July 2021 and are

ARRFAMBRARER T~
tATABEERGIERRETIE

signed on its behalf by: WHLTATREESE :
Yuan Chaoyang She Hao
=L RE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= =
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—Z—

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes trade
and other payables, secured bank loans and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
strategy was unchanged from 2018. The directors review the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts or the
redemption of existing debts.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(@) Share option scheme on 16 June 2017

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed on 16 June 2017, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for, amongst others, the senior management
and employees, which serves as incentives or rewards to attract,
retain and motivate staff. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21 June
2017 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the operation of
the New Share Option Scheme). Under the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to all full-time employees,
directors (including independent non-executive directors) and
part-time employees with weekly working hours of 10 hours and
above, of the Group, substantial shareholders of each member of
the Group, associates of the directors and substantial
shareholders of any member of the Group, trustee of any trust
pre-approved by the Board, and any advisor (professional or
otherwise) or consultant, distributor, supplier, agent, customer,
joint venture partner, service provider of the Group whom the
Board considers, at its sole discretion, has contributed or
contributes to the Group.

34.

35.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(2

Share option scheme on 16 June 2017 (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
adoption of the New Share Option Scheme (namely, 233,877,250
shares, representing approximately 8.14% of the Company’s
issued shares as at the date of this annual report), without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. No option may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme if such limit is
exceeded. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and to be granted to any
individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The grant of
share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
requires the approval of the independent non-executive directors
(excluding an independent non-executive Director who is the
grantee of the share options). Options granted in any 12-month
period to a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant or with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

35. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@

(b)

Share option scheme on 16 June 2017 (Continued)

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. A
share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to
be determined and notified by the Board to each grantee,
provided that such period of time shall not be more than ten years
from the date of grant. The New Share Option Scheme does not
specify a minimum period for which a share option must be held
nor a performance target which must be achieved before a share
option can be exercised. However, the Board may, at its sole
discretion, determine such terms and impose such other
restrictions on the grant of a share option. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the offer date which must be a business day, (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (jii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

Movements of share options granted/exercised

No vesting period or vesting condition on the share options and
the share options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant and within a period of five years from the date of grant. The
weighted average remaining contractual life is 3.4 years (2018: 4.4
years).

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 3. LUERZREEUROBERZRS
(Continued) (#&)
(b) Movements of share options granted/exercised (b) EBEH EBTEIERESS
(Continued) (%)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (i) B E MMEFEYT
options are as follows: EEMT :
Weighted average Number of
exercise price options
IEFETEE BREYE
('000)
(F1p
Outstanding at 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\F—H—H
IARITEE - -
Granted during the year ERFH HK$0.33 78 7T 233,400
Exercised during the year ERTTE HK$0.33 % 7T (195,100)

Outstanding at 31 December 2018 ~ R=—ZE—N\E+=-A=+—H

and 1 January 2019 k=ZT—-NF—A—H
B ARTTE HK$0.33 77T 38,300
Forfeited during the year FRIRIR HK$0.33 /& 7T (1,500)

Outstanding at 31 December 2019 ~ R-ZE—AFE+-A=+—H
W ARTTIE HK$0.33 /87T 36,800

Exercisable at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=-A=+—H
AT HK$0.337& 7T 36,800

Exercisable at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+-A=+—H”

AT HK$0.33 8 7T 38,300

Note: P 5E

Fair value of share options and assumptions R 2 AT EREBR
The fair value of services received in return for share options ERE R HIEARAER 2 B WE
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options BR3% 2 A ETI2E IR ERE
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options ZAFEFE - FIIRBRE G
granted is measured based on Binomial Model. The contractual AT EAR-EARAGE -
life of the share option is used as an input into this model. Bz N E R BERAER

Y A B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

35. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

()

Movements of share options granted/exercised
(Continued)

Fair value at measurement date REtEHBZAFE
Share price 4

Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility TEHA & 18

Option life B AR i £ A
Expected dividend TEHARR B

Risk-free interest rate 1 [BLfR F) R

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these share
options were granted to the employees, directors of the Company
for recognising their services to the Group, and certain share
options were granted to consultants for rendering miscellaneous
services to the Group. Since the services provided by consultants
are such unique that the fair value cannot be reliably measured,
the services received are measured by reference to the fair value
of share option granted.

e ISR M EE

T-NE+ZAS+—ALFE

LDESEEURORERZRS

ORE BTz ERESS
(#&)

24 May 2018 30 May 2018
—E—)\F —T—)\F
AA-+mMA FA=+H
HK$0.05 7% 7T HK$0.06 78 7T
HK$0.32 78 7T HK$0.335 7 7T
HK$0.32 %8 7T HK$0.335 & 7T
49.85% 49.68%
5 years F 5 years F
Nil & Nil &
2.19% 2.07%

T 0008 7 1R 48 S IR 18
B AR i 4 A
A RIAR A AR R
JOR IR B R - T
B REBER B - T8
BB ABEBREDRAY AT
BEHEEEAYSE -

ERRABERR  ZEERES
BETARAZRERES  FR
HEAASERHRS 2RR

W T RSB RHMEERE 2
FRANE TR - ARFEAA
RUZBRBE/EE  ERATVEE
ER SR MATRERE 2R
PrZ B 2 A FERTE -

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAEIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are REBRAREHRNERNFENT :
as follows:
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019 and 2018 not RZE-—NFRZZT-NF+ZA
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: =+ —BWRRERE M BREAFIRN
MAREEEANAENT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Contracted for REIES]
— Acquisition of intangible assets —WiEETEE = 8,100
— Acquisition of a subsidiary — Uk BE — R B A A) - 7,650
— Purchase of property, plant and —BEWE  BERRE
equipment - 12,395
— Capital injection in an associate —EE B E AR = 9,800
- 37,945
37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. REFHNEE
2018
—ET-N\F
RMB’000
AREFIT
Within 1 year —FR 896
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 160
1,056

AEBRBLEHENDHERAEYE -
HE-ROP R —FE=F  AJRE
A GRENER TENELD - B8
B ems AR -

The Group leases office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to three years with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed scheme. The employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has no other transactions
with its related parties.

38.

39.

ERBEREE
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ARESREGHRENEERY A
BEMEATESE([wEEE ) - &
BeitEe—HaBYETAEENE
BUFRIRE B - RIBRTESE - &
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PR A30,00078 7T ) K)5% A &t B/
K AR EEBES -

AEETSHEEREENE - AEE
P EMEARZRE T ERMNRL
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

40.

RAREEMBRRAFE

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 @ RIZE—AER_Z—N\F+=

December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: A=Z+—HZARABAEEHER

AIFBIT
Issued and Proportion of ownership interest
fully paid gt Epild
share capital/ Group’s Held by Held by
Place of registered effective the a
incorporation/ capital/capital interest Company subsidiary
registration/ BETR
Name of subsidiaries operation HERE/ r5E KRR WE2AF  Principal activity
HWEARER EMAL/ R/ EEHY ARER/RA BREL BE BE TEXH
% % %

Sanai International Investment British Virgin Islands 10,000 ordinary shares 100 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited (‘BVI")/Hong Kong of US$1 each

“EARRARRAR RERANE 10,000 REREE RESR

(RERREE]) /B4 1RTOERR
Wuyi International Pharmaceutical Hong Kong 300,000,000 2019: N/A - 2019: N/A  Investment holding
{Hong Kong) Company Limited ordinary share  (2018: 100) (2018:100)
of HK$1 each
HRERER (FR)ARAR EE 300000000 ZF-NF: “E-NF: REER
BREE1ATH TEm TR
Lk (ZT-NF: (220§
100) 100)

Fujian Sanai Pharmaceutical PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 2019: N/A - 2019:N/A - Develop, manufacture,
Company Limited enterprise for a term of RMB 290,780,000 (2018:100) (2018:100)  marketing and sales
(*Fujian Sanal’) (note (i) 50 years commencing ZE-NE: ZZ-N%:  of pharmaceutical

18 January 2020 TER TER  products
(ZB-N\F: (ZZ-N\EF
100) 100)
# EXERAA(ERZE)) +E HEFELLE HMER FEEE 2HR
GE) “ETE-AHN\REH AR #290,780,0007C HEREER
RES0F
Fujian Liumai (note (i) PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 2019: N/A - 2019: N/A  Sales of pharmaceutical
enterprise for a term of RMB 10,000,000 (2018: 100) (2018:100)  related software and
30 years commencing —5-NE: ZE-NE: provision of
21 August 2014 TR TER  consultancy services
(Z2NF: (ZF-NE:
100) 100)
TR/ 2k () RE - NEEELE AR HEBEERRMAR
“E-MENAZT AR AR#10,000,0007C RAERRS
AH0F

Sanai International Trading Hong Kong 10,000,000 100 - 100 General trading

Company Limited ordinary share
of HK$1 each

“EBREHERAT EE 10,000,000 -%E5
BIREE1 AT
LAk

Union Development Financial PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100 - 100 Provision of finance
Leasing (Shenzhen) Company enterprise for a term of RMB 120,000,000 leasing service
Limited (notefii) 30 years commencing

5 December 2016
BERRRERE (R PENEEELE EMER RURERERS
BRAR (FE () I NEtZARAE NE#120,000,0007C
RES0F
Zhejiang Sanai Biotechnology PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100 - 100 General trading
Limited (note (ii) enterprise for a term of HK$ 30,000,000
10 years commencing
8 September 2017

MIZEENMEARAR E RS HER -85

(G0 “E-TEAANBRH ARH:30,000,0007T

AE10%F
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-ZA=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

40. AATEERMEARFEE)

COMPANY (Continued)
(@  (Continued) (@ (&)
Issued and Proportion of ownership interest
fully paid FEREAL
share capital/ Group’s Held by Held by
Place of registered effective the a
incorporation/ capital/capital interest Company subsidiary
registration/ BETR
Name of subsidiaries operation BRkA/ A58 KAF HE23  Principal activity
WEARER EMEAL/ L/ EE B HMER/RE ERER BE BE TEEH
% % %
Shenzhen Sanai Industry PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100 - 100  General trading
Company Limited (note (i) enterprise for a term of HK$10,000,000
infinitely sustainable
commencing 21 June 2018
RN=FEZERRE () PE - NEEELE HMER -%85
ZE-\FRAZT-HE AR#10,000,0007C
7-}<"‘ANI E’
Forever Turmp Energy Holdings BVI 50,000 ordinary shares 100 - 100  Investment holding
Limited (*Forever Trump”) of US1 each
BBERIRARAT ERRNEHE 50,000 REREE REER
(MEB%E)) 1ETHEBR
Forever Turmp Energy Technology Hong Kong 1,000,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (“Forever Trump Energy’) ordinary share
of HK$1 each
BEERRRERAA(BHER) B8 1,000,000% RERR
GREE1 AT
Shanghai Shangliu Company PRC wholly-foreign-owned Registered capital 100 - 100 Investment in laundry
Limited (note (i) enterprise for a term of RMB 5,000,000 business
30 years commencing
5 June 2018
EERERNEERAT PERERE &R REEREH
(I i ) () “T-/\ERARRRE ARH5,0000007T
BH0F
Fujian Yongchun (note (i) The PRC Registered capital 2019: 51 - 2019: 51 Develop, manufacture,
RMB 15,000,000 (2018: N/A) (2018:N/A)  marketing and sales
“E-nf: “ZT-A%:  of pharmaceutical
51 51 products
(ZBN\%: (ZB-N%:
TEm) TEm)
REKE (e () HE HMER FE - RE BER
AR%15,000,0007C HEREER
Fujian Zhixin (note (i) The PRC Registered capital 2019: 100 - 2019: 100  Develop, manufacture,
RMB2,000,000 (2018: N/A) (2018:N/A)  marketing and sales
“E-nE: “T-A%:  of pharmaceutical
100 100 products
(ZB-N\F: (ZB-N\F:
TER) T@ER)
EEZE () HE HMER FE - RE BER
AR#2,000,00070 HEBEER
Zentrogene Hong Kong 2,000,000 2019:100 - 2019:100  Develop, manufacture,
ordinary share (2018: N/A) (2018:N/A)  marketing and sales
“I-nE: ZE-NF:  of pharmaceutical
100 100 products
(ZB2N%: (ZB2N%:
TiEm) T@ER)
Zentrogene Bl 2,000,000 AR FE - RE BER
HEREER
Notes: Fi5E
0] None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end (i) R|EPRLFANEARR - BENE
of the reporting period, or at any time during the year. NABEAAREENEEES -
(ii) The English names of the subsidiaries are presented for identification (ii) B RR 2 R B IBEMHHBR -

purposes only.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. AATRFEM B RFE (E)
COMPANY (Continued)
(b)  The following table shows information of the subsidiary that has (b) TRITEBEHAEEMEBEK

non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before inter-

company eliminations.

Name of the subsidiary

= PNSIER

Principal place of business/country of incorporation
FELEMEEMBCIATERR

% of ownership interest held by NCI

SRS ENMARERA DL

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Accumulated NCI

Year ended 31 December
Revenue

Loss

Total comprehensive expenses
Loss allocated to NCI

Divided paid to NCI

FERBEE
mBEE
nBEE
FRBEE

BEFE

REIEER R
HE+-A=+—HLLFE
Yezs

&8

GGG

DEE IR 2 BB

[BAREZEL G o)

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited e Annual Report 2019

eI R A as ([ FEFE AR ) /Y
MERRNER - HEERTE
HEARELHASHE -

Fujian Yongchun
BEXE

The PRC

I

49%

2019
—2-ne
RMB’000
ARBTR

26,551
1,742
(10,293)
(2,571)

15,429

7,560

28,392
(963)
(963)
@72)
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(@

(b)

Major non-cash transaction
For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Group had completed the acquisition of Zentrogene on 1
April 2019, in which the portion of the consideration (amounted to
RMB13,910,000) was settled under a debt assignment agreement
among the Group, the vendor of Zentrogene and a debtor of the
Group.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated cash flows from financing activities.

M. HEREREBERME

(@ EEFRERS
BE-_FE-—NFt+=-A=1—
HIEFEE
AEBER-_ZT—NEFMNA—H
SERR YL BB Zentrogene + AR (E
o (&5 A AREE13,910,000
JT) B R & 7N & @ - Zentrogene
BAR—RBAREBBAZHED
B RRELS -

(b) BMETHELEEEEH
TRAMFINEAREEHEE
rEEBEZY  BERSRIFE
Re®y mETELZAE
BREMDEHARRIRE R
DRRBERPELNAEEL

At 1 January 2018

Changes in cash flows

Non-cash changes
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Non-cash changes
Settlement through disposal of property,
plant and equipment and land use right
through mandatory auctions
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2019

EHRemE -
Secured
bank loans
BEARITER
RMB’000
ARBTT
R-ZE—-NF—H—H 281,942
WemEE (2,844)
R & H)
HEME AT (45,306)
R=B-NF+=A=+t-BEK
—E-h&E-A-A 233,792
GRS
FRRFIAELENE - BE K
A R L0 RS
(67,803)
HEHBAR] (165,989)

R-ZB-AF+=-A=+—H -

—EREEXEEARAT  —E-NFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-Z—hNF+-_A=+—HILFE

42.

LITIGATION

Refer to the announcement of the Company dated 18 January 2021, the
Company has received a civil judgement (the “Judgement”) dated 22
December 2020 issued by 1t =R % 1 & & A K % Bz (the No. 4
Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing®) (the “Court”) in relation to a
litigation (the “Litigation”) brought by 1t = 3L BHE gt & F & 8D AR
A 7] (Beijing Cultural Technology Finance Lease Company Limited*, the
“Plaintiff”) against, among others, (a) the Company; (b) Fujian Sanai, the
disposal of which was completed in April 2019; (c) Lin Ouwen, a former
executive Director; and (d) Lin Min, a former executive Director.

The Plaintiff first filed a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) with
the Court on 30 August 2018, whereby, among others, the Plaintiff
alleged that (i) Fujian Sanai, a then subsidiary of the Company, had
entered into a finance lease agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement”)
with the Plaintiff on 21 March 2016, pursuant to which the Plaintiff
agreed to lease certain assets to Fujian Sanai for a term of 36 months
with a total leasing cost of RMB134,954,600 and an interest rate of
8.3%; (i) each of the Company, Lin Ouwen, who was a then executive
Director, and Lin Min, entered into a guarantee agreement with the
Plaintiff respectively to provide joint guarantee (the “Guarantee”) for the
debts owed by Fujian Sanai under the Finance Lease Agreement; and (iii)
Fujian Sanai had failed to pay the rent payable under the Finance Lease
Agreement since 20 August 2017, and the Company, Lin Ouwen and
Lin Min had failed fulfill their obligations as guarantors. The Statement of
Claim was received by the Company in July 2019.

As such, the Plaintiff demanded, among others, that (i) Fujian Sanai
immediately pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent in the amount of
RMB33,855,032.69 with the default interest accrued thereon, undue
rent in the amount of RMB47,592,982.21, default payment in the
amount of RMB4,759,298.22 (being 10% of the undue rent), the legal
fees in the amount of RMB800,000, the retention purchase price of
RMB100 and the cost incurred in relation to the Litigation; and (i) the
Company, Lin Ouwen and Lin Min be jointly liable for the debts owed by
Fujian Sanai under the Finance Lease Agreement.

The Plaintiff also submitted to the Court a copy of the alleged minutes of
the Board meeting (the “Board Meeting”) held on 22 March 2016 on
which resolutions (the “Resolutions”) were passed to approve, inter alia,
the provision of the Guarantee by the Company. However, only two of
the then Directors, Lin Ouwen and Lin Qingping, were shown to have
attended and voted on the Resolutions.

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019
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LITIGATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the Judgement, among other things, Fujian Sanai shall,
within ten days of the Judgement, pay to the Plaintiff the unpaid due rent
under the Finance Lease Agreement in the amount of
RMB383,855,032.69 with the default interest accrued thereon, the
accelerated due rent under the Finance Lease Agreement in the amount
of RMB47,592,982.21, the default payment in the amount of
RMB4,759,298.22, the retention purchase price of RMB100, the legal
fees in the amount of RMB800,000, the announcement fees in the
amount of RMB2,650, the preservation insurance fees in the amount of
RMB175,636.06 and the preservation fees in the amount of RMB5,000
(collectively the “Litigation Amount”); and the Company, Lin Ouwen and
Lin Min shall be jointly liable for the Litigation Amount, and they are
entitled to claim against Fujian Sanai after discharging of such joint
liabilities.

Refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 February 2021, the
Company has lodged an appeal (the “Appeal”) against the Judgement to
b m e A REBR (the High People’s Court of Beijing®) on 22 January
2021.

Pursuant to the Appeal, the Company has pleaded to It RS AAR
J&BT (the High People’s Court of Beijing®) to rule that the Finance Lease
Agreement and the Guarantee were invalid, and to reject all of the
Plaintiff’s claims.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the directors on 16 July 2021.

42.

43.

HFEA (48)

RIBHR - HP R BE=EEEH
RTAR - MRS NREREREE
THXRMTEHBHASARIE
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

RESULTS

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)
Other income and other gain, net

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of land use rights and

property, plant and equipment
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other loss on assets
Finance costs
Share of results of an associate

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
(Loss)/prafit for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company

— Profit/(loss) from continuing operations
— (Loss)/profit from discontinued operation

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

— Loss from continuing operations

Loss attributable to non-controlling
interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Dividend paid
Earnings/(loss) per share
— from continuing and discontinued

operations

— from continuing operations

— from discontinued operation

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets
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Year ended 31 December

BETZA=t-HILFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZT-HF ZERF “E—tF —E-N\F ZE-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETTT
(Restated)
(B =7)

555,652 263,025 62,534 58,024 81,854
(436,045) (245,062) (119,311) (51,243) (79,742)
119,607 17,963 (66,777) 6,781 2,112
1,978 14,196 1,803 9,383 2,678
35,003 Wl - -
(44,112) (15,478) 4, 739) (52) (248)
(52,660) (82,781) (39,528) (28,449) (25,602)
- (435,069) (922,920 (5,561) (18,970)
2,241) (2,117) (12 695) (60) (27)

- (105) - -
57,575 (503,398) (1,034,856) (17,958) (40,057)
(16,372) 107,140 (116,888) 3,678 444
41,203 (396,258) (1,151,744) (14,280) (39,613)

_ - - (215,475) 148,093

41,208 (396,258) (1,151,744) (229,755) 108,480
41203 (396,258) (1,151,744) (14,280) (39,141)

- - - (215,475) 148,093

41,203 (396,258) (1,151,744) (229,755) 108,952

- - - - 472)

- - - - (472)

41,208 (396,258) (1,151,744) (229,755) 108,480
RMB2.4 cents RMB(20.0) cents RMB(47.8)cents  RMB(7.7)cents ~ RMB3.5 cents
ARE245%  ARER0OS ARKWen  AREINSD AR#35%
RMB2.4 cents RMB(20.0) cents RMB(47.8) cents  RMB(0.5) cents ~ RMB(1.3) cents
ARB245%  AREQR0OS AREW@ 8  ARE(057 AR%(1.32
RMB(7.2) cents ~ RMB4.8 cents

- - - ARE12% AR#4.8%

EERAER
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T-EF ZTRF “2tF “2-N\F “E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARETTT
1,694,932 1,388,287 531,052 365,730 253,370
(149,467) (149,870) (311,827) (294,203) (65,804)
1,545,465 1,238,417 219,225 71,627 187,566

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited ® Annual Report 2019



N\ g

Sanai Health Industry Group Company Limited
CEEREEXEBRARARA



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	管理層討論與分析
	企業管治報告
	董事履歷
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



